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WPL Holdings, Inc. is 
the parent company of 
Wisconsin Power and 
Light Co. and Heartland 
Development Corp. Formed 
in 1988 as the result of a 
corporate restructuring, the 
company has its headquar
ters in Madison, Wis. and 
has assets of $1.8 billion.  

Wisconsin Power and 
Light Co., the holding 
company's utility subsidiary, 
provides electric energy, 
natural gas and water to 
394,500 customers in south
central Wisconsin. WP&L's 
service territory spans 
roughly one-third of the 
state and offers electrical 
rates that rank in the 
bottom quarter nationally.  

Through the Heartland 
Development Corp.  
companies, WPLH offers 
environmental, energy and 
affordable housing services 
nationally and internation
ally. HDC companies are 
located in 49 cities, includ
ing two locations in Mexico 
and one in Finland.  

Together, WP&L and the 
HDC companies provide 
WPL Holdings, Inc. with a 
unique combination of 
expertise and market 
potential. Despire the 
uncertainty o industry 
change, the WPLH family 
of companies finds itself 
favorably positioned to seek 
competitive advantage in 
the ever-changing markets 
it serves.

ABOUT 
WPL HOLDINGS, INC.
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WPL HOLDINGS, INC.  

7 WISCoNsIN POWER AND 
LIGHT CO.  
* South Beloit Water, Gas and 

Electric Co.  

HEARTLAND DEVELOPMENT 

ENERGY SERVICES 
* A&C Enercom Consultants, Inc.  
* EcoGroup Inc (sold 12-31-94) 
* ENSERV, Inc.  
* Entec Consulting, Inc.  
* Heartland Energy Services, Inc.  

ENVIRONMEN IAL SERVICES 
* RMT, Inc. * 
* Jones & Neuse, Inc.  
* QES, Inc.  

(In 1994, Hydroscience, Inc. and Four 
Nines, Inc. were merged into RMT and 
ceased being separate legal entities.) 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
* Capital Square Financial Corp.  
* Heartland Capital Co.  
* Heartland Properties, Inc.  
* Heartland Retirement 

Services, Inc.  
* Tool Kit Property Management 

Systems, Inc.  
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WPL Holdings, Inc.  

1994 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

PERCENT CHANGE 

1994 1993 1984 1 YEAR 10 YEARS 

FINANCIAL 
(dollars in thousands except for per share data) 

Operating revenues.................................... $816,159 $771,943 $575,476 5.7% 41.8% 
Net income.............................................. 65,250 62,523 53,462 4.4% 22.0% 
Earnings per share.................................... 2.13 2.11 2.06 0.9% 3.4% 
Dividends per share.................................. 1.92 1.90 1.26 1.1% 52.4% 
Book value per share................................. 19.43 19.15 13.05 1.5% 48.9% 

OPERATIONS 

Electric sales (thousand kWh)..................... 10,858,836 10,360,560 8,589,490 4.8% 26.4% 
Electric customers...................................... 371,265 361,743 314,895 2.6% 17.9% 
Gas sales (thousand therms)...................... 324,758 323,138 261,917 0.5% 24.0% 
Gas customers............................................ 140,966 136,263 106,837 3.5% 31.9% 

OPERATING NET DIVIDENDS 
REVENUES INCOME PER SHARE

'92 '93 '94 '92 '93 '94 '92 '93 '94'92 '93 '94



To OUR SHAREOWNERS 

U 1994 WILL FOREVER REMAIN IN MY MEMORY 
AS THE YEAR IN WHICH RESTRUCTURING OF 
THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY BECAME 
IMMINENT, AND THE ENTIRE WPL HOLDINGS 
ORGANIZATION BEGAN TO PLAN HOW BEST TO 

TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THE CHANGING ENVIRON
MENT FOR UTILITIES AND UTILITY HOLDING 
COMPANIES.

ERROLL B. DAVIS JR.  

President and 
Chief Executive Officer 
WPL Holdings, Inc. and 
Wisconsin Power and Light Co.
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t was a year in which 
utility stock prices, 
in reaction to higher 
interest rates and grow

ing uncertainty about utility 
investment, fell an average of 
19 percent. Investment ana
lysts began to differentiate 
among utility stocks, much as 
they have traditionally done in 
other business sectors, and 
utility investors, used to steady 
dividend growth and stable 
earnings from utilities, were 
surprised by dividend cuts and 
freezes. Headlines such as 
"Electric Utilities Brace for 
End of Utility Monopolies," 
from the Aug. 5 edition of The 
New York Times, became 
commonplace, and customers 
began to dream of switching 
electric companies the way 
they switch long distance 
telephone carriers.

Against this backdrop of 
uncertainty, I am eager to 
explain to you, our share
owners, how the WPL 
Holdings family of compa
nies is preparing to meet the 
challenges of rapidly evolv
ing markets and regulatory 
change. I also hope to offer 
you some insight into why 
firms like Robert W. Baird, 
Edward D. Jones, Merrill 
Lynch and others continue to 
place WPLH among the 
select group of companies 
positioned for success in a 
newly competitive electric 
utility industry.  

Beginning as early as 
1985, when a Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission 
ruling brought competition 
into the wholesale electric 
market, WPLH began to 
formulate a holding com
pany strategy to prepare for 
change. In 1994, several 
months of strategic planning



effort brought us to a clearer 
vision of what the future may 
look like and how we intend to 
place our companies into it.  
While there are still major 
areas of uncertainty in our 
planning, we now believe that 
Wisconsin Power and Light 
will break into transmission, 
generation and distribution 
business units that will eventu
ally become independent 
subsidiaries. Some will operate 
in openly competitive markets.  

Heartland Development 
Corp., the company that 
houses our diversification 
investments, will pursue a 
growth strategy focused on 
the development of a national 
energy and environmental 
services company. HDC will 
constantly review the direction 
of all of its companies for 
synergies with the emerging 
energy and environmental 
management market.  

We are certain that, for the 
utility industry, low cost, high 
customer satisfaction and 
forward-looking management 
will be the keys to future 
success.  

In the Business Review 
section of this report, WP&L's 
1994 efforts to ensure we are 
not only prepared but in a 
leadership position in all of

those categories are outlined.  
For the Heartland Develop

ment companies, our report 
highlights their challenges and 
accomplishments over the past 
year. These companies have 
unique attributes that we firmly 
believe will enable them to 
make the transition within their 
respective markets to new ways 
of serving customers. We intend 
to exploit their strengths and 
position them to add maximum 
value to the WPLH portfolio.  

In 1994, the financial perfor
mance of WPLH reflects the 
state of flux of our companies.  
Our stock price has dropped 
slightly less than the industry 
average; we increased our 
dividend by two cents again in 
January of 1995; and our 
overall yield remains above 
the Standard & Poor's Utilities 
average. WPLH reported 
earnings-per-share of $2.13, 
an increase of two cents over 
1993. Our earnings were 
affected by two non-recurring 
items. The impact of the 
reversal of a coal contract 
penalty was more than offset 
by a charge for early retirement 
programs at the utility. Absent 
these items, earnings-per-share 
is $2.24, up 9 cents or 4.2 
percent from 1993.

, Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc., in its 
February 1995 Utility Report, ranked 

WPL Holdings, Inc. No. I on its winners' list 
for competitive position. 3



TO OUR SHAREOWNERS, CONTIUED 

Productivity and cost controls reduced WP&L operations and 
maintenance expenses by $6 million from 1993 levels. Combined 
with better margins and significantly lower interest expense, the 
financial performance of the utility was strong in 1994.  

The financial performance of the HDC companies was more 
uneven. RMT and its 
associated environ

s e iv mmental companies 
performed well, with 
steady, predictable 
performance In spite 
of a flat market. For 
A&C Enercom, the 
year was a transitional 
one as the company 
restructured its busi
ness focus toward 
becoming the out
sourcing firm of choice 

for a variety of utility 
marketing and cus
tomer service func
tions. Heartland 

WPLH's executive management meets weekly to address the challenges Properties, Inc. also 
and opportunities presented by the changing markets we serve. Here, the wsi rniin 

senior management group, William D. Harvey, senior vice president-WP&L transition, 
(seated, left); Erroll B. Davis Jr., president and CEO WP&L and WPL Holdings, shifting its emphasis 
Inc. (seated, center); Eliot G. Protsch, senior vice president-WP&L (seated, from being a major 
right); Lance W Ahearn, president and CEO-Heartland Development Corp. investor to developing 
(standing, left); and A.J. (Nino) Amato, senior vice president-WP&L (standing, affordable housing for 
right) discuss future strategies for the WPL Holdings family of companies. investment by other 

companies. HPI also 
incurred significant 
delays associated with 
the formation of 
Heartland Capital 
Corp., a subsidiary 
formed to provide 
construction financing 
for HPI developments.



The pace of change has 
quickened and we intend to 
stay ahead of the pack. We 
believe companies that emerge 
from the chaos as winners 
will be those that meet cus
tomer demands, have low 
costs and develop value
added growth strategies.  
This description fits WPL 
Holdings.  

During the year ahead, 
the management of WPLH 
intends to pursue two strat
egies to ensure our future 
position. At the utility, we 
will continue to concentrate 
on lowering costs while 
improving our performance 
on customer-based service 
standards. Through HDC, we 
will focus expertise that exists 
within the WPLH companies 
on developing a national 
company that addresses the 
energy and environmental 
management needs of large, 
industrial customers. In this 
manner, during the coming 
year WPLH will move toward 
the goal of becoming a full
service energy company.

Looking back, 1994 was a 
year characterized by change.  
Change, though difficult for 
some, has inspired employees 
at every level to think cre
atively and to challenge 
themselves to find better ways 
in which to serve our custom
ers. Change has brought us 
clearer vision and has focused 
our thoughts on the future.  

WPLH, its management and 
its employees look forward to 
what the next year will bring, 
knowing that we are a better 
company because of the 
changes we made in 1994.  

ERROLL B. DAVIS JR.  

President and 
Chief Executive Officer 
WPL Holdings, Inc.  

Feb. 28, 1995

THE PACE OF CHANGE 

HAS QUICKENED AND 

WE INTEND TO STAY 

AHEAD OF THE PACK.  

WE BELIEVE COMPANIES 

THAT EMERGE FROM 

THE CHAOS AS WINNERS 

WILL BE THOSE THAT 

MEET CUSTOMER 

DEMANDS, HAVE LOW 

COSTS AND DEVELOP 

VALUE-ADDED GROWTH 

STRATEGIES. THIS 

DESCRIPTION FITS 

WPL HOLDINGS.



1994 BUSINEss REVIEW 

......................................................  

UTILITY OPERATIONS

Several key events in 1994 set the 
stage for planning and implementa
tion activities at Wisconsin Power 
and Light Co. Rulings by the Fed
eral Energy Regulatory Commission 
reinforced the message that trans
mission systems were mandated 
open to all buyers and sellers of 
wholesale power. The FERC also 
added a new twist by requiring that 
transmission tariffs or charges be 
comparable for all users... including 
us, the owners.  

In the spring of 1994, Cali
fornia's Public Service Commission 
announced that it would begin the 
process of restructuring its electric

, WP&L's reengineering initiative included a redesign 
of all major field systems and an increased reliance 

on technology. By measuring performance against customer
driven standards, employees are able to see the impact of 
their efforts on customer needs.

utilities to provide large industrial 
customers a choice of energy suppli
ers by 1996 and all customers, 
including residential and small 
commercial customers, retail choice 
by 2002.  

Subsequently, the Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin announced 
its intention to consider industry 
structure in this state, and we are 
currently engaged in a process that 
will allow thorough exploration of 
the pros and cons of both wholesale 
and retail choice. The PSCW has 
appointed a 22-member committee to 
facilitate the discussion and intends to 
have its restructuring recommenda
tions to the state Legislature by 
December of this year. WP&L is 
represented on this committee.  

At the strategic planning level, 
WP&L began to look at how to break 
itself into its component parts of 
generation, transmission and distribu
tion, as well as how it might operate 
in a differently regulated environ
ment. As part of that plan, the utility 
will begin to move down the path of 
vertical disintegration from a cost
accounting perspective by the end 
of 1995.  

In early 1994, the company 
began to reengineer the major 
customer service systems within 
the utility. By year's end, redesign of 
work processes had been completed 
for the sales and marketing area, the 
build and maintain area (including 
emergency response), planning and 
engineering, and materials manage
ment or sourcing. Currently, power 
plant processes are being examined.  

This reengineering will provide 
better service to WP&L customers at 
a lower cost. Specific measurement 
criteria for key areas of customer 
concern were developed - such as

I



response time 
targets and 
number of 
outage minutes.  
These will be 
used as a way to 
determine how 
successful 
reengineering 
efforts have been 
from customers' 
perspectives.  

One example of improved 
service is the expansion of 
WP&L's Customer Service Center 
to 24-hour operation. The CSC 
is capable of responding to many 
more calls at any given time than 
was previously possible. In oper
ation for a little over two years, 
the CSC already surpasses 
benchmarking standards for 
"excellence" in three out of four 
customer service categories and 
has been identified by a Hewlett 
Packard benchmarking study as 
one of the best telephone opera
tions centers in the country.  

In the summer of 1994, a new 
Energy Management System was 
installed at the System Operations 
Center. This will help maximize the 
cost effectiveness of WP&L's 
power plant operations and ensure 
that we are operating our facilities 
in an optimum manner.  

Today, as a result of redesigned 
systems and other productivity 
improvements, WP&L has reduced 
its work force by about 11 percent 
below 1993 levels. These actions 
partially account for the reduction 
of $6 million in operations and 
maintenance expenses between 
1993 and 1994.  

An innovative performance
based rate proposal submitted by

, Schreier Malting, grand award winner in the 1994 Wisconsin Manufacturer of 
the Year competition, believes in partnership. A specialty 150-year-old family

owned malting company in Sheboygan, Wis., Schreier brings more than malt to 
market; it brings a history of risk taking and innovation.  

Schreier executives tell how the small malt company weathered Prohibition by 
producing soft drinks and whole wheat flour. Today, the company continues its 
propensity for innovative new products by bringing to market UltraMalt", an intense 
beer-flavored malt. UltraMalt can be used by brewers to produce a full-flavored low
or no-alcohol beer or by food manufacturers to add the distinctive flavor to everything 
from bratwurst to bagels. And the company's growth doesn't stop there. Schreier owns 
and operates facilities in Biggar, Saskatchewan, Canada, and Nanjing, China.  

The move into China was a big risk. "We had to be willing to lose it all," explained 
Keith Gretenhart, vice president of sales and technical services. "But the potential for 
growth is so great in China, we knew if we didn't try, we'd always regret it." 

Wisconsin Power and Light Account Manager Kathy Tatro, (right, above) and John 
Pausha, vice president of plant operations, work together to assure the Sheboygan 
plant has the high-quality and low-cost energy products necessary to continue its 
growth.  

In the future, Schreier knows it probably will be able to choose its electrical 
supplier, and they plan to choose WP&L. "We're concerned about our customers and 
how we care for them," explained Pausha. "When we receive that same level of 
concern back from our suppliers, that melds them to us."

WP&L BEGAN TO LOOK AT HOW TO 

BREAK ITSELF INTO ITS COMPONENT 

PARTS OF GENERATION, TRANSMISSION 

AND DISTRIBUTION, AS WELL AS HOW 

IT MIGHT OPERATE IN A DIFFERENTLY 

REGULATED ENVIRONMENT.



1994 BUSINESS REVIEW, CONTINUED

*Marc Jacobson (above), A&C 
Enercom Consultants, Inc.  

principal consultant, and Jennifer 
Krabbenhoeft, WP&L marketing 
manager, review the unique capabili
ties of MarKIT, a new marketing 
intelligence system designed by A&C 
Enercom. MarKIT, while still in the 
developmental stage, has been sold 
to WP&L and Indiana Gas Light, and 
continues to generate interest through
out the country. The system allows a 
business to pull marketing informa
tion together under one platform and 
easily retrieve the data for standard 
or customized analysis.

WP&L to the PSCW as part of the 
company's last rate case allows the 
company to earn incentive returns 
in key areas. For example, WP&L 
will have an opportunity to earn 
additional returns if it exceeds 
established criteria in fuel pur
chases, gas purchases and SO2 
emissions.  

WP&L was also able to reduce 
its electric rates at the end of 1994, 
due in part to the various cost
containment and productivity 
efforts implemented over the last 
several years. Combined with 
reengineering, these containment 
efforts are expected to help WP&L 
maintain its competitive rates.  

In spite of industry uncertainty, 
Moody's Financial Services reaf
firmed WP&I's Aa(2) bond rating 
in October 1994, and recognized 
the company's "above average 
competitive posture." This rating 
reflects not only the financial 
strength of WP&L today but also 
its low generation costs, declining 
rates, cost-containment initiatives, 
reengineering efforts and strong 
customer relationships. These 
factors will help ensure WP&L's 
competitive position in future 
electric utility markets as well.  

ENERGY CONSULTING 

A&C Enercom Consultants, Inc., 
WPLH's energy consulting company, 
was impacted profoundly by 
changes in the electric utility 
industry. Building on its long-term 
relationships with America's top 
utilities, A&C Enercom's market 
has moved beyond traditional utility 
marketing and customer support 
services toward providing products 
and services that utilities may want 
to outsource in the future.

One of the products A&C 
Enercom has developed for the new 
utility environment is an integrated 
software product for managing 
customer information. Created 
initially in response to needs at 
WP&L, the new software, called 
MarKIT"', debuted in November.  
It is already a hit with utilities 
looking to improve their marketing 
strategies, product management and 
sales performance in anticipation of 
competition.  

1994 saw A&C Enercom break 
into the international utility market 
by winning energy services contracts 
in India, Jamaica and Canada. The 
company's TRITECH business unit 
provides innovative turn-key 
technologies to help utilities 
improve the energy efficiency of 
their industrial and commercial 
customers. TRITECH has success
fully implemented more than $80 
million worth of energy-related 
improvements for more than 800 
customers over the last three years.  

ENERGY BROKERING 

Heartland Energy Services made 
history this year as the first utility
affiliated energy-brokering company 
to be certified as an electric power 
marketer by the FERC. HES is one 
of only nine U.S. energy marketers 
that actually bought and sold 
electric power in 1994.  

The company's gas marketing 
business also continues to expand.  
HES uses four pipelines extensively, 
is active in bulk-power gas sales 
and had customers in Wisconsin 
and Illinois last year. Staffing was 
increased at the end of 1994, and 
gas sales are expected to rise 
comparably in 1995.  

In order to provide around-the
clock service to its electric and gas



customers, HES is establishing a 24
hour dispatch center that will debut 
in early 1995. In the future, HES' 
experience and customer knowledge 
will become key elements in WPLH's 
full-service energy company strategy.  

AFFORDABLE AND 

OLDER-ADULT HOUSING 

Heartland Properties, Inc. began 
its transition from primary investor 
to developer for the investment of 
other companies in 1994. Among 
its successes was the development 
of five WovenHeartsm assisted
living franchises. Assisted living is 
yet another part of the continuum 
of services offered by HPI to both 
developers and investors interested 
in meeting the special housing needs 
of older adults.  

Another service added by HPI 
was the development of a $100 
million construction lending com
pany, Heartland Capital Co. HPI 
can now provide the full range of 
financing and consulting services 
for those interested in affordable 
and older-adult housing investment.

, Shoveler Sink, a 177-acre site that until 1991 was used primarily for agri
cultural purposes, was recently restored as a wetland by WP&L Stewards 

of Nature volunteers in cooperation with the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources.  

In September 1994, the DNR awarded the Stewards of Nature an award of 
appreciation in recognition of their restoration of Shoveler Sink to its natural state.  
The Shoveler Sink Waterfowl Production area was also supported by Wisconsin 
Ducks Unlimited and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

L

WP&L's AA(2) BOND RATING 

REFLECTS NOT ONLY THE COMPANY'S 

CURRENT FINANCIAL STRENGTH BUT 

ALSO ITS LOW GENERATION COSTS, 

DECLINING RATES, COST-CONTAIN

MENT INITIATIVES, REENGINEERING 

EFFORTS AND STRONG CUSTOMER 

RELATIONSHIPS. THESE FACTORS 

WILL HELP ENSURE A COMPETITIVE 

POSITION IN FUTURE ELECTRIC 

UTILITY MARKETS AS WELL.
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1994 BUSINESS REVIEW, CONTINUED

J Currently, HPI is marketing 
its expertise in affordable-housing 
development to other utilities.  
For example, as part of a recent 
arrangement with Georgia Power, 
HPI will be working with that 
utility to develop high-quality, 
affordable- housing investments 
throughout the Georgia Power 
service territory. To better 
coordinate this joint venture, 
HPI has opened an Atlanta 
regional office.

, WovenHearts-, a division 
of Heartland Retirement 

Services, Inc., offers older adults an 
alternative to nursing home care 
when they can no longer safely 
stay in their own homes. Designed 
for people who want to maintain 

10 their privacy and independence, 
WovenHearts is for people who 
need some assistance with daily 
living, but not comprehensive 
medical attention. To date, there 
are five WovenHearts develop
ments in operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

RMT remains a star performer, 
not only within HDC but within 
its industry as well. Although 
impacted somewhat by a general 
slowdown in the environmental 
industry, RMT and its affiliated 
environmental companies con
tinue to grow steadily and 
profitably.  

In 1994, RMT grew by about 
12 percent and its profits have 
increased steadily by nearly 10 
percent per year over the last four 
years. With the assimilation of 
acquisitions made in 1993 and 
1994, RMT is now 28th in 
revenue among environmental 
engineering firms nationwide, 
according to the Environmental 
Business journal.  

RMT's continued growth is 
due in part to its unique environ
mental services, such as a propri
etary chemical process for on-site 
treatment of lead contaminants.  
The company has used this 
innovative technique for both 
private customers and public 
agencies to greatly reduce the cost 
of environmental clean-up.

Another specialty of the 
company is working with custom
ers to eliminate or minimize waste 
streams from industrial processes.  
RMT also works with companies 
to offer a combination of environ
mental and energy solutions to 
customer problems. One such 
project is a closed cooling system 
at Parker Pen in Janesville, Wis., 
that uses ground water, pumped as 
part of a ground water treatment 
program, for process cooling. This 
project, the winner of a design 
excellence award from the 
Wisconsin Association of Con
sulting Engineers, addressed an 
environmental concern, provided 
a better cooling process, and 
reduced both energy and water 
usage costs to the customer.

Fl 

II 

Ii. When BMW built its 
first U.S. assembly 

plant, RMT was chosen as 
an environmental engineering 
partner. Working closely 
with BMW engineers from 
Munich, Germany, and 
U.S.-based equipment 
vendors, RMT participated 
in plant design and compiled 
all the necessary applications 
and permits. They worked 
together to open the plant 
on time and in complete 
compliance with U.S.  
standards and air-quality 
regulations.



SOUND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, 
INNOVATIVE THOUGHT AND AGGRESSIVE 

GROWTH STRATEGIES HAVE PLACED 

WPLH AMONG AN ELITE GROUP...  

UNIQUELY POSITIONED FOR SUCCESS IN 

A COMPETITIVE FUTURE.

From this premier position 
RMT has worked for 65 percent of 
the Fortune 100 companies 
RMT will focus its resources on 
further developing a national 
market for environmental manage
ment services. For those who want 
to avoid environmental problems, 
environmental management 
planning is a growing need among 
companies with multiple facilities.  
As industry and other large 
customers increasingly seek to 
reduce uncertainty and enhance 

. profitability through the manage
ment of their environmental and 
energy issues, RMT, with the other 
HDC subsidiaries, will be a strong 
player in this emerging market.  
In the future, RMT's national 
platform will be leveraged to 
market combined energy and 
environmental services as part of a 
larger diversified energy company.  

LOOKING AHEAD 

A combination of strong utility 
performance and quick response to 
market changes by the WPLH 
companies has made 1994 another 
profitable and productive year.  
1995 may bring even greater 
change to the electric utility 
industry, and there are sure to be 
strategic adjustments as the WPLH 
companies seek to maximize their 
competitive advantages. However, 
sound financial management, 
innovative thought and aggressive 
growth strategies have placed 
WPLH among an elite group of 
utility holding companies uniquely 
positioned for success in a com
petitive future. The company is 
well prepared to meet whatever 
challenges 1995 brings its way.

U

, RMT's association with Ashland Chemical Co., a division of Ashland Inc., 
exemplifies the type of relationship the environmental company strives to build 

with all of its customers.  
"New environmental regulations are rapidly reshaping product markets and the 

energy industries that serve them," wrote John R. Hall, Ashland's chairman of the board 
and chief executive officer, in the 1993 corporate annual report. "All of Ashland's 
businesses will feel the impact of this change." 

To ease the transition to this environmentally regulated market, Ashland Chemical 
teamed up with RMT. "When we work with customers, we try to leverage our environ
mental, health and safety services," said Andrew Kolarsky, Ashland Chemical's director 
of environmental, health and safety. "These services are so valuable, our foundry 
products division considered selling them to customers. Instead, we formed an alliance 
with RMT to offer the services." 

"Now, our chemical sales people actually sell RMT services, and when RMT 
technicians are in a foundry operation, they can recommend Ashland Chemical's 
products and technical capabilities," Kolarsky said. "We even advertise our alliance in 
trade magazines." (See advertisement above.) 

"We don't treat each other as customer-supplier. We treat each other as partners," 
Kolarsky explained, "and that has made for a wonderful relationship."

11



BOARDS OF DIRECTORS 
WPL Holdings, Inc. (WPLH) 
Wisconsin Power and Light Company (WP&L) 
Heartland Development Corporation (HDC) 
As of December 31, 1994 
[Bracketed information represents Board/Year Elected.) 

TEiF BUSINESS, EDUCATIONAL, PROFESSIONAL AND CIVIC 

BACKGROUNDS OF THEI 13 INDIS VHDAID S WHO CO1MPRISE 'I IEl 

WPL HoLDINGS, INC. BOARD oF DIRiECTORS PROVIDE I FIE WPLH oANMH 
OF COMPANIES WITH THE EXPERIENCE AND JUDGMEINT NEEDED TO MEET 

TODAY S REGULATORY AND MARKET CHALLE NGES.

IErroll B.  
Davis Jr.  
50 
President and 
Chief Executive 
Officer, WPL 
Holdings, Inc. and 
Wisconsin Power 
and Light Co.; 
Chairman of the 
Board, Heartland 
Development 
Corp., Madison, 
Wisconsin.  
{WPLH/1982); 
{WP&L/1984); 
{HDC/1988}.  
Committees: None.

Katharine C.  
L all 

President, 
University 
of Wisconsin 
System, Madison, 
Wisconsin.  
{WPLH/1994); 
{WP&L/1986}; 
(HDC/1994).  
Committees: 
Chair - Audit, 
HDC Corporate 
Operations 
Review, 
Nominating.

IHenry F.  
Scheig 
70 
Chairman of 
the Board, Aid 
Association for 
Lutherans (fraternal 
benefit society), 
Appleton, 
Wisconsin.  
{WPLH/1994); 
{WP&L/1980}; 
{HDC/1994).  
Committees: 
Audit, Environ
mental Affairs, 
HDC Corporate 
Operations 
Review.

Milton E.  
Neshek 
64 
President, Chief 
Executive Officer and 
Director, Godfrey, 
Neshek, Worth & 
Leibsle, S.C. (law 
firm), Elkhorn, 
Wisconsin; Director, 
General Counsel, 
Assistant Secretary 
and Manager, New 
Market Develop
ment, Kikkoman 
Foods, Inc. (food
p roducts manu
acturer), Walworth, 

Wisconsin.  
(WPLH/1 986}; 
(WP&L/1984); 
{HDC/1994).  
Committees: Chair 
Compensation and 
Personnel, Environ
mental Affairs, 
WP&L Corporate 
Operations Review.

IHenry C.  
Prange 
67 
Director and 
Retired Chairman 
of the Board, H.C.  
Prange Company 
(retail department 
stores), Green Bay, 
Wisconsin.  
(WPLH/1986); 
(WP&L/1965); 
(HDC/1994}.  
Committees: 
Compensation 
and Personnel, 
HDC Corporate 
Operations Review, 
Nominating.

Carol T.  
Toussaint 
65 
Consultant (to 
non-profit groups 
on board 
organization, fund 
development and 
public relations), 
Madison, 
Wisconsin.  
(WPLH/1994); 
(WP&L/1976); 
(HDC/1994}.  
Committees: 
Compensation 
and Personnel, 
Environmental 
Affairs, 
Chair - WP&L 
Corporate 
Operations 
Review.
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ALL BOARDS RESTRUCTURED 

On Feb. 23, 1994, the WPL Holdings, WP&L and 
HDC boards were restructured to have common 
membership. The move, which expanded the board 
from 12 members to 13, facilitates the exchange of 
information about major operating areas as WPLH's 
non-regulated businesses continue to grow.

UNDERKOFLER RETIRES FROM BOARD 

On May 18, 1994, during the Annual Meeting of Shareowners, James R.  
Underkofler, former chairman of the board, president and chief executive 
officer of WPL Holdings, Inc., retired from the WPLH Board of Directors.  
First employed by WP&L in 1941, Underkofler's career with the company 
spanned more than 49 years. A member of the WP&L Board of Directors 
since 1965, he served as President and CEO of WP&L and subsequently 
WPLH from 1968 to 1990. A director of WPLH since 1981 and Heart
land Development Corp. since 1988, Underkofler is credited as being the 
driving force behind Wisconsin's holding company legislation, which 
paved the way for the formation of WPL Holdings, Inc.

Rockne G.  
Flowers 
63 
President and 
Director, Nelson 
Industries, Inc.  
(muffler, filter, 
industrial-silencer, 
and active sound 
and vibration
control technol
ogy and manufac
turing firm), 
Stoughton, 
Wisconsin.  
(WPLH/1981}; 
(WP&L/1994); 
(HDC/19901.  
Committees: 
Audit, 
Chair - HDC 
Corporate 
Operations 
Review, 
Nominating.

Lance W.  
Ahearn* 
45 
President and 
Chief Executive 
Officer, Heartland 
Development 
Corp. (WPLH 
subsidiary 
specializing in 
energy, environ
mental and 
housing services), 
Madison, 
Wisconsin.  
{HDC/1 990).  
Committees: None.  
*Heartland 

Development Corp.  
Board onk

L. David 
Carley 
66 
Consultant 
and Financial 
Advisor (to small 
businesses, 
institutions and 
associations 
specializing in 
higher education 
and health 
delivery), 
Washington, D.C.  
(WPLH/I 994); 
(WP&L/1 983); 
{Prior WP&L 
service: 1975
1977); 
(HDC/1994).  
Committees: 
Audit, Environ
mental Affairs, 
HDC Corporate 
Operations 
Review.

IArnold M.  
Nemirow 
51 
President, 
Bowater, Inc.  
(pulp and paper 
manufacturer), 
Greenville, South 
Carolina.  
{WPLH/1 991); 
{WP&L/1994); 
(HDC/1 991).  
Committees: 
Compensation 
and Personnel, 
Chair - Nominat
ing, WP&L 
Corporate 
Operations 
Review.

udith D.  
yle 

51 
Vice Chair and 
Senior Vice Presi
dent - Corporate 
Marketing, 
Ray-O-Vac Corp.  
(battery and 
lighting-products 
manufacturer), 
Madison, 
Wisconsin.  
)WPLH/1992); 
{WP&L/1994); 
{HDC/1992).  
Committees: 
Compensation and 
Personnel, 
Nominating, 
WP&L Corporate 
Operations 
Review.

Les 
Aspin 
56 
Chairman, 
President's 
Foreign Intelli
gence Board, 
Washington, 
D.C.; Distin
g uished Professor 
or International 

Policy, Marquette 
University, 
Milwaukee, 
Wisconsin.  
(WPLH/1994); 
(WP&L/1 994}; 
(HDC/1994).  
Committees: 
Audit, Nominat
ing, WP&L 
Corporate 
Operations 
Review.

Donald R.  
Haldeman 
58 
Executive Vice 
President and 
Chief Executive 
Officer, Rural 
Insurance 
Companies 
(mutual insurance 
group), Madison, 
Wisconsin; farm 
owner-operator, 
Norwalk, 
Wisconsin.  
{WPLH/1994}; 
{WP&L/1985); 
{HDC/1994).  
Committees: 
Audit, Chair 
Environmental 
Affairs, WP&L 
Corporate 
Operations 
Review.
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WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT 
COMPANY PROFILE 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS: %oOF %oOF 

Wisconsin Power and Light Co. - Madison, Wis. REVENUE SALES 

Subsidiary: South Beloit Water, Gas and Electric Co. ELECTRIC 
ELECT z'rICCC/ 0

Total assets: $1.6 billion 
Operating revenues: $673 million 
Net income: $68.2 million 
Total employees: 2,391 
Customers: 394,500 (total electric, gas and water)

IWISCONSIN POWER AND LIGH-T OFFICE LOCATIONS
* Corporate Office 0 Operation Centers

es entla arm 

Industrial 
Commercial 
Wholesale & Class A 
Other 

NATURAL GAS 
Residential 
Commercial & Industrial 
Interruptible 
Transportation 
Other

26.4% 
19.1% 
16.2% 

1.8% 
100% 

51.2% 
30.0% 

6.3% 
10.8% 

1.7% 
100%

34.7% 
15.6% 
23.7% 

0.4% 
100% 

36.8% 
26.8% 

7.6% 
26.3% 

2.5% 
100%

Service territory: 
16,000 square miles in south-central 
Wisconsin - roughly one-third of the state 
Facilities: 
o 8 hydroelectric plants 

(two jointly owned) 
* 7 natural-gas-fired peaking units 
* 4 coal-fired generating stations 

(includes 9 units; 4 jointly owned) 
* 1 gas-fired steam generating plant 
* 1 nuclear power plant (jointly owned) 
* 1 Customer Service Center 
* 1 System Operations Center 
Total system capacity: 
2,200 megawatts 
Record system peak demand: 
2,002 megawatts on June 16, 1994

1994 HIGHLIGHTS 

* WP&L turned 70 years old on April 14, 1994.  

* In May 1994, WP&L became the first utility in the state to offer 
its customers 24-hour service by expanding its Customer Service Center.  

* In December 1994, the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin 
approved WP&L's request to lower electric rates by 2.8 percent. The 
new rates, effective Jan. 1, 1995, will remain in effect two years.  

* In 1994, WP&L became the first utility in the state to propose changing 
the traditional cost-of-service-based rate-making structure to an 
incentive-based format. In December 1994, as part of the final rate 
order for UR-109, the PSCW approved tying one-half of 1 percent of 
WP&L's revenues to performance measures in the following areas: 
natural gas purchases, sulfur dioxide (SO2) emissions and electrical 
outage minutes. Currently, 12 U.S. utilities have incentive or perfor
mance-based rate plans.

PERCENTAGE OF 
OPERATING 
REVENUES 

78.8% 

20.7% 

0.5%

GENERATION 
BY FUEL 
TYPE 

80.6% 

16.8% 

77 .3 % mm

* Water 

Natural Gas 

* Electric

Oil 

<>Natural Gas 

Hydroelectric 

Nuclear 

Coal

+ Energy Centers

boygiu 
dgewaer



CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS: 

Heartland Development Corp. Organization: 
Madison, Wis. Four corporate offices: 
Subsidiaries: e Heartland Development Corp.  
Energy Services Madison, Wis. (corporate headquarters) 

A&C Enercom Consultants, Inc. Energy Services 
EcoGroup, Inc. (sold 12-31-94) * A&C Enercom Consultants, Inc.  
ENSERV, Inc.  
Entec Consulting, Inc.  
Heartland Energy Services, Inc. Environmental Services

Environmental Services 
RMT, Inc.* 
Jones & Neuse, Inc.  
QES, Inc.  

In 1994, Hydroscience, Inc. and Four Nines, Inc. were 
merged into RMT and ceased being separate legal entities.  

Affordable Housing 
Capital Square Financial Corp.  
Heartland Capital Co.  
Heartland Properties, Inc.  
Heartland Retirement Services, Inc.  
Tool Kit Property Management Systems, Inc.  

Total assets: $215.9 million 
Operating revenues: $142.7 million 
Total employees: approximately 1,500

HDC OFFICF LOCAnONS 

- * Corporate Offices + Energy Services Offices * Environmental Services Offices

*MT, Inc.  
Madison, Wis.  

Affordable Housing 
* Heartland Properties, Inc.  

Madison, Wis.  
General offices: 

62 (including two in Mexico and one in 
Finland), covering 49 cities 

PERCENTAGE OF 
OPERATING 
REVENUES

Affordable Housing 
Energy Services 

28.9% Environmental Services 

9.7% 

1994 HIGHLIGHTS 

* In August 1994, Heartland Energy Services, 
a subsidiary of Heartland Development 
Corp., became the first utility-affiliated 
energy brokering company in the nation to 
be certified as an electric power marketer by 
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.  

* The Environmental Business journal annual 
ranking of the top 50 environmental/ 
consulting firms ranked RMT 28th in the 
nation in 1994. RMT was not ranked in 
1993. (Source: Environmental Business 
Journal/April 1994. Based on 1993 gross 
revenues.) 

* The 1994 net income of the environmental 
companies increased 20 percent from 1993 
levels.  

* In 1994, Heartland Properties, Inc. formed 
Heartland Capital Co., to provide construc
tion financing for HPI housing developments.
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THE EXECUTIVE GROUP 
OF THE WPL HOLDINGS, INC. FAMILY OF COMPANIES 

As of December 31, 1994 
j(Dates in parentheses represent the year person joined WPLH and/or subsidiary.)

WPL HOLDINGS, INC. (WPLH) 
CORPORATE OFFICERS 

Erroll B. Davis Jr., 50 (1978) 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Edward M. Gleason, 54 (1977) 
Vice President, Treasurer and 
Corporate Secretary 
Steven F. Price, 42 (1984) 
Assistant Corporate Secretary and 
Assistant Treasurer 

WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT 
COMPANY (WP&L) CORPORATE 
OFFICERS 

Erroll B. Davis Jr., 50 (1978) 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
A.J. (Nino) Amato, 43 (1985) 
Senior Vice President 
William D. Harvey, 45 (1986) 
Senior Vice President 
Eliot G. Protsch, 41 (1978) 
Senior Vice President 
Norman E. Boys, 50 (1973) 
Vice President-Power Production 
Daniel A. Doyle, 36 (1992) 
Vice President-Finance, 
Controller and Treasurer 
David E. Ellestad, 54 (1960) 
Vice President-Electrical Engineering 
and Operations 
Joseph E. Shefchek, 38 (1984) 
Assistant Vice President
Environmental Affairs and Research 
Barbara J. Swan, 43 (1987) 
Vice President and General Counsel 1 6 Pamela J. Wegner, 47 (1993) 
Vice President-Information Technology 
and Administration 
Kim K. Zuhlke, 41 (1978) 
Vice President- Customer Sales 
and Services 
Edward M. Gleason, 54 (1977) 
Corporate Secretary 
Thomas J. Handziak, 31 (1993) 
Assistant Controller 
Thomas L. Hanson, 41 (1980) 
Assistant Treasurer 
Steven F. Price, 42 (1984) 
Assistant Corporate Secretary 

SUBSIDIARY OF WISCONSIN POWER AND 
LIGHT COMPANY 

South Beloit Water, Gas and 
Electric Company 
Erroll B. Davis Jr., 50 (1978) 
President and Chief Executive Officer

HEARTLAND DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION (HDC) 
CORPORATE OFFICERS 

Erroll B. Davis Jr., 50 (1978) 
Chairman of the Board 
Lance W. Ahearn, 45 (1990) 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 
Joel E. Simpson, 48 (1994) 
Vice President, Chief Financial 
Officer, Treasurer and Secretary 
Cynthia P. Kellogg, 40 (1992) 
Controller 
Marilyn C. Bottorff, 48 (1992) 
Assistant Corporate Secretary 
Edward M. Gleason, 54 (1977) 
Assistant Corporate Secretary 

HEARTLAND DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION (HDC) 
COMPANIES 

A&C Enercom Consultants, Inc.  
Lance W. Ahearn, 45 (1990) 
Chief Executive Officer

C. Dean Alford, 41 (1993) 
President 

Capital Square Financial 
Corporation 

Joel E. Simpson, 48 (1994) 
Chief Executive Officer and 
President 

Heartland Properties, Inc.  
Joel E. Simpson, 48 (1994) 
Chief Executive Officer 
Thomas A. Landgraf, 46 (1979) 
President 

RMT, Inc.  
Lance W. Ahearn, 45 (1990) 
Chairman of the Board 
Joseph B. Busby, 55 (1984) 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

WISCoNsIN POWER & LIGHT 
FOUNDATION, INC.  

A.J. (Nino) Amato, 43 (1985) 
President

1994 WPLH MANAGEMENT CHANGES

New Corporate Officers Named at WP&L and HDC 
The WPL Holdings, Inc. Board of Directors elected three members of the 
Wisconsin Power and Light Co. executive group to corporate officer positions 
at the utility company on Dec. 21, 1994. Daniel A. Doyle, controller and 
treasurer, was named vice president-finance, controller and treasurer; Barbara 
J. Swan, general counsel, was named vice president and general counsel; and 
Joseph E. Shefchek, director of environmental affairs and research, was named 
assistant vice president-environmental affairs and research.  

The Heartland Development Corp. Board of Directors elected two new 
corporate officers in 1994. Joel E. Simpson, formerly executive vice president, 
treasurer, chief financial ofhcer and director of Intelligraphics, Inc., Waukesha, 
Wis., was named vice president, chief financial officer, treasurer and secretary 
of Heartland Development Corp. on Oct. 1, 1994. In addition to his duties 
at the corporate level of HDC, Simpson was elected chief executive officer 
of Heartland Properties, Inc. and Capital Square Financial Corp., both HDC 
subsidiaries, on Oct. 25, 1994. He was elected president of Capital Square 
Financial Corp. on Dec. 6 1994. Cynthia P. Kellogg chief financial officer of 
RMT, Inc., a subsidiary of HDC, was elected controller of Heartland Develop
ment Corp. on July 13, 1994.  

Officer Retirement 
Thomas L. Consigny, assistant vice president-public affairs, elected to partici
pate in WP&L's voluntary early retirement program, effective Nov. 1, 1994.  
Consigny, who is an attorney joined the company in 1968 as public affairs 
consultant. He was promotedJ to director of ublic affairs later that year, a 
position he held until 1973. Consigny serve as assistant to the president
public affairs from 1973-1976. He was promoted to the officerlevel as 
assistant vice president -public affairs in 1976.  

Ellestad Named as Scholar in Residence 
David E. Ellestad, WP&L's vice president-electrical engineering and opera
tions, was named scholar in residence at the University of Wisconsin
Platteville, effective Jan. 15, 1995. Ellestad will be a loaned senior executive 
during his tenure as scholar in residence and will work to strengthen the 
educational and industrial outreach program of the college. His appointment, 
announced in mid-October 1994, is for a two-year period.

1



WPL HOLDINGS, INC.  
1994 FINANCIAL REVIEW 

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
(in millions except for per-share data) 

1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 

Operating revenues.................................... $ 816 $ 772 $ 673 $ 670 $ 618 
N et incom e.............................................. $ 65 $ 63 $ 58 $ 66 $ 60 
Earnings per share.................................... $ 2.13 $ 2.11 $ 2.10 $ 2.42 $ 2.23 
Total assets (at December 31)..................... $1,806 $1,762 $1,566 $1,383 $1,261 
Long-term debt, net (at December 31)........ $ 448 $ 425 $ 418 $ 367 $ 343 
Cash dividends paid per share.................... $ 1.92 $ 1.90 $ 1.86 $ 1.80 $ 1.74 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
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43 Financial and Operating Statistics



.WPL HOLDINGS, INC.  

* MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

1994 COMPARED WITH 1993

Overview 

Earnings per share of WPL Holdings, Inc. (the 
"Company") common stock increased to $2.13 
in 1994 compared with $2.11 in 1993. Earnings 
for 1994 were significantly affected by two non
recurring items from the Company's utility sub
sidiary Wisconsin Power and Light Company

("WP&L"). These items were the reversal of a coal 
contract penalty in the first quarter and costs associ
ated with early retirement and severance programs 
which primarily occurred in the fourth quarter. Both 
of these items are discussed in the "Other Events" 
section of Management's Discussion and Analysis.  
The following breakout presents the recurring 
aspects of 1994's operations.

Earnings per share, as reported...................................................................................  
Less: Increase in earnings from reversal of coal contract penalty.................................  
Add: Decrease in earnings from costs associated with early retirement 

and severance program s.....................................................................................  
Earnings per share before the above non-recurring items ...........................................

The increase in the "Earnings per share before the 
above non-recurring items" primarily reflects an 
increase in operating earnings from WP&L. The 
increase was somewhat offset by program start-up

costs associated with expansion of the affordable 
housing and energy services businesses of the 
Company's non-regulated subsidiary, Heartland 
Development Corp. ("HDC").

Electric Operations

kWhs Sold, 
% Generated 

Change and Purchased

Revenues & 
Costs Per 
kWh Sold 

% Generated 
Change & Purch.

Residential and farm ........  
Industrial.........................  
Commercial.....................  
Wholesale and Class A.....  
Other...............................  

Total............................  
Elec. production fuels ......  
Purchased power............  
M argin...........................

1994 1993 
(in thousands) 

$194,242 $184,176 
140,487 132,903 
101,382 95,977 
86,400 78,955 

9,236 11,176

5% 
6% 
6% 
9% 

-17%
531,747 503,187 6%
123,469 
37,913 

$37,3

123,919 

28,5 33% 
$350,694 6%

1994 1993 
(in thousands)

2,776,895 
3,764,953 
1,688,349 
2,574,121 

54,518 
10,858,836 
9,445950 

1,780,4_5

2,751,363 
3,540,082 
1,629,911 
2,388,131 

51073 
10360560 
9,180,484 
1,481,993

1994 1993 1994 1993

1% 
6% 
4% 
8% 
7% 
5% 
3% 

20%

$.070 
.037 
.060 
.034 
.169 

$.049 
$.013 
$.021

$.067 
.038 
.059 
.033 
.219 

$.049 

$.013 
$.019

325,063 
776 

43,868 
81 

1,477

316,870 
714 

42,884 
39 

1,236

WP&L's electric margin in dollars increased during 
1994 compared with 1993. The primary factor was 
a 3.8 percent retail rate increase effective October 1, 
1993. Strong economic conditions in the industrial 
and commercial customer classes contributed higher 
sales and customer growth. A colder than normal 
January and a very warm mid-September offset rela
tively mild summer conditions in July and August,

making 1994 a relatively average year in terms of 
degree day impacts on sales volumes. Electric pro
duction fuel costs were stable in 1994. The volume 
of purchased power increased as a result of WP&I's 
efforts to conserve coal inventories during a rail 
strike in the third quarter of 1994. See "Other 
Events" for details.

1994 

$2.13 
(.16) 

.27 
$2.24

1993 

$2.11 

(-) 

.04 
$2.15

Revenues 
and Costs

Customers at 
End of Year

371,265 361,43



Gas Operations

Revenues % 
and Costs Change 

1994 1993 
(in thousands) 

Residential ........................ $ 71,555 $ 71,632 
Firm ................................... 41,918 40,748 3% 
Interruptible....................... 8,777 10,685 -22% 
Transportation................... 15,112 14,205 7% 
O ther ................................. 2,284 -

Total.............................. 139,646 137,270 2% 
Purchased gas..................... 88,55 90,50 -3% 
M argin ............................... $ 51,093 $ 46,7655 10% 

Gas margin increased in 1994 from 1993, primarily 
based on two factors: 1) a 1.4 percent retail rate 
increase effective October 1, 1993, and 2) an in
crease in customers in the higher-rate firm service 

Fees, Rents and Other Operating 
Revenues ("Other Revenues") 

Environmental services revenues increased due to 
continued strong demand. Other revenues increased 
due to an increased number of affordable housing 
project syndications and the inclusion of the full year 
of revenues in 1994 for A&C Enercom Consultants, 
Inc. that was acquired in February 1993.  

Other Operation Expense 

The increase in other operation expense is primarily 
related to the early retirement and severance pro
grams discussed later in the "Other Events" section 
and increased program start-up costs associated with 
the expansion of the Company's affordable housing 
and energy services businesses. Offsetting these costs 
were reductions in WP&L's operating costs resulting 
from the ongoing reengineering of its processes.  

Maintenance 

Maintenance expense decreased between years due 
to the variation in the timing and extent of WP&I's 
maintenance outages at its generating facilities

Therms Sold 
& Purchased 

1994 1993 
(in thousands) 

119,562 120,005 
87,487 87,038 
24,809 27,872 
85,364 84,877 

7,536 
324,58 ,2 
293,547 285,531

Revenues & 
Costs Per 

% Therms Sold 
Change & Purch.  

1994 1993

1% 
-13% 

1% 

2% 
4%

$.60 $.60 
.48 .47 
.36 .39 
.18 .17 
.31 
.44 .43 

$31 $.32

Customers at 
End of Year 

1994 1993

124,938 
15,531 

272 
135 
90 

140,966

120,829 
15,088 

261 
85 

13 6,263

resulted in a more favorable sales mix. The overall 
cost of purchased gas declined, reflecting WP&L's 
effective use of opportunities on the gas spot market.

between years. Secondarily, a severe storm in the 
summer of 1993 increased 1993's maintenance 
expense related to service restoration.  

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation expense increased, principally reflect
ing increased property additions and increased 
decommissioning costs for WP&L.  

Other Income and (Deductions) 

Other income increased due to the reversal of a 
coal contract penalty discussed later in the "Other 
Events" section.  

Income Taxes 

Income taxes increased between years primarily due 
to higher taxable income.  

Affordable housing tax credits declined as HPI 
reduced its ownership interests in qualifying prop
erties late in 1993, placing more emphasis on the 
generation of syndication and development fees 
and retaining only small ownership interests in 
additional properties.
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IWPL HOLDINGS, INC.  

1993 COMPARED WITH 1992 

Overview

Earnings per share of the Company common stock 
increased to $2.11 in 1993 compared with $2.10 in 
1992. The increase in earnings primarily reflected an 
increase in earnings from WP&L. The principal fac
tors leading to increased earnings included warmer 
summer weather and lower electric fuel costs per 
kWh which yielded higher electric margins for 
WP&L. These increases were somewhat offset by in
creased depreciation expense resulting from addition
al investment in utility plant and property additions, 
a change in the mix of gas sales from higher margin

Electric Operations

Revenues 
and Costs 

1993 1992 
(in thousands)

sales to lower margin sales, the increase in the federal 
corporate tax rate from 34 percent to 35 percent and 
a one-time 4-cent-per-share charge associated with a 
voluntary separation program for the executive man
agement group at the utility.  

The Company's nonregulated subsidiary, HDC, 
contributed to earnings through its principal busi
nesses: 1) environmental engineering and consult
ing, 2) affordable housing, and 3) energy products 
and services.

kWhs Sold, 
% Generated 

Change and Purchased 
1993 1992 

(in thousands)

Revenues & 
Costs Per 
kWh Sold 

% Generated 
Change & Purch.

Customers at 
End of Year

1993 1992 1993 1992

Residential and farm ........  
Industrial.........................  
Commercial.....................  
Wholesale and Class A.....  
Other...............................  

Total............................  
Elec. production fuels ......  
Purchased power..............  
M argin.............................

$184,176 
132,903 
95,977 
78,955 
11.176

$171,887 
128,467 
91,707 
77,485 
8.189

7% 
3% 
5% 
2% 

36%

2,751,363 
3,540,082 
1,629,911 
2,388,131 

51.073
503,187 477,735 5% 10,360,560 
123,919 123,440 .4% 9,180,484 

28,574 24,427 17% 1,481,993
$350,694

2,614,439 
3,377,132 
1,551,823 
2,208,419 

55,230 
9,807,043 
9,041,317 
1,124,667

5% 
5% 
5% 
8% 

-8% 
6% 
2% 

32%

$.067 
.038 
.059 
.033 
.219

$.066 
.038 
.059 
.035 
.148

316,870 
714 

42,884 
39 

1,236

310,702 
727 

42,287 
39 

950
.049 .049 

$.013 $.014 
$.019 $.022

$329,868 6%

WP&I's electric margin in dollars increased during 
1993 compared with 1992 due to increased demand 
for electricity brought on by warmer summer weath
er. Residential customers, being the most weather 
sensitive, experienced the most significant increases.  
Wisconsin's strong economy kept the commercial and 
industrial classes growing steadily. These increases 
were coupled with declining electric production fuel

costs per kWh. The decrease in electric production 
fuels was due to WP&Ls aggressive pursuit of addi
tional spot coal purchase opportunities as its longer 
term contracts began to expire. Additionally, a highly 
competitive rail transportation environment signifi
cantly reduced the cost of transporting the coal.  
Also, lower cost purchased power became available 
due to excess capacity in the bulk-power market.
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Gas Operations
Revenues & 

Costs Per 
Revenues % Therms Sold % Therms Sold 
and Costs Change & Purchased Change & Purch.

Residential ......................  
Firm .................................  
Interruptible.....................  
Transportation.................  
O ther...............................  

Total............................  
Purchased gas ..................  
M argin.............................

1993 1992 
(in thousands) 

$71,632 $63,699 
40,748 37,154 
10,685 9,554 
14,205 8,674 

- 281

1993

13% 
10% 

12% 
64%

137,270 119,362 16% 

90,505 77,112 18% 
$4675 $42,250 11%

1992
(in thousands) 

120,005 114,131 
87,038 82,087 
27,872 25,497 
84,877 69,244 

- 1,923 

319,792 292,882 
285,531 258431

1993 1992 1993 1992

6% 
7% 

10% 
23%

$.60 
.47 
.39 
.17

$.56 
.46 
.38 
.13 
.15

120,829 
15,088 

261 
85

10% $.43 $4 13,26 

11% $.32 $30

WP&L's gas revenues for 1992 were affected by the 
recognition of a $4.9 million before-tax refund to its 
natural gas customers, resulting from an adjustment 
in the calculation of the purchased gas adjustment 
clause. Without the impact of this revenue adjust
ment, comparative gas margins would have declined 
for 1993 compared with 1992.  

The overall increases in gas revenues and purchased 
gas costs between years resulted primarily from 

Fees, Rents and Other Operating 
Revenues ("Other Revenues") 

Other revenues increased between years as a result 
of RMT's and HPI's growth in their respective busi
nesses and the result of acquisitions in the environ
mental and energy services businesses.  

Other Operation Expense 

Other operation expense also increased as a result 
of the above factors. An additional increase resulted 
from higher WP&L employee benefit expense 
(see Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
Note 7). These increases were offset somewhat by 
decreases in WP&L's conservation program expen
ditures and decreases in fees associated with the sale 
of WP&1's accounts receivable due to a decline in 
interest rates. Additionally, WP&L's cost manage
ment efforts have helped control annual inflationary 
pressures on general and administrative costs.  

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased, 
principally reflecting increased property additions

increased volumes procured on behalf of transporta
tion customers. This had the impact of decreasing 
margins as a percentage of total revenues. A change 
in the mix of gas sales from higher margin residen
tial sales to lower margin sales also moved margins 
downward. Offsetting this decline, Wisconsin's 
strong economy enabled growth in the commercial 
and industrial classes, and there was also some over
all increase in the demand for natural gas due to 
colder weather.  

and the commencement of deferred charge amortiza
tions approved in WP&L's rate orders received in 
December 1992 and October 1993. The most signifi
cant amortizations include the amortization related 
to an acquisition adjustment which resulted from the 
purchase of transmission facilities and the amortiza
tion of costs incurred related to the remediation of 
former manufactured gas plant sites (see Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 11).  

Allowance for Funds Used 
During Construction ("AFUDC") 

Total AFUDC increased in 1993 compared with 
1992, reflecting the greater amounts of construction 
work in progress including the costs associated with 
WP&L's construction of two 86-megawatt combus
tion-turbine generators.  

Interest Expense 

Interest expense on debt decreased between years, 
primarily reflecting the benefits of WP&L's refi
nancing efforts.

Customers at 
End of Year

116,642 
14,656 

262 
109 

13169
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, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
Rates and Regulatory Matters 

On December 9, 1994, the Public Service Com
mission of Wisconsin ("PSCW") issued rate order 
UR-109, effective for a two-year period beginning 
January 1, 1995. The order included the following 
decisions on WP&L's retail rate application as filed 
on February 4, 1994: 1) electric revenues will be 
decreased by approximately $12.3 million (2.8 
percent) annually; 2) natural gas revenues will be 
increased by approximately $.7 million (.5 percent) 
annually; 3) return on common equity will be 11.5 
percent versus WP&L's previously allowed return 
on equity of 11.6 percent.  

Further, the PSCW approved certain incentive pro
grams described below: 

1. The electric fuel adjustment mechanism was elim
inated. In its absence, WP&L will benefit from 
reductions in fuel cost. Conversely, WP&L will 
be exposed to increases in fuel costs.  

2. The automatic purchased gas adjustment clause 
was also eliminated. In the future, the fluctua
tions in the commodity cost of gas above or 
below a prescribed commodity price index will 
serve to increase or decrease WP&L's margin on 
gas sales. Fixed demand costs are excluded from 
the incentive program. Both benefits and expo
sures are subject to ratepayer sharing provisions, 
which are capped at $1.1 million.  

3. In order to promote air quality and reliability, 
there are SO2 emissions and service reliability in22 centive clauses. Positive incentive available under 
these clauses is a pretax $1.5 million for the SO2 
emissions and a pretax $.5 million for the service 
reliability. WP&L's earnings are also negatively 
exposed for equal amounts. Since WP&L is 
allowed to collect all revenues under these pro
grams in advance, up to $4.0 million annually 
of pretax revenue may be collected subject to 
refund upon final determination of performance 
under this program.  

Industry Outlook 

The PSCW has recently opened a formal docket 
initiating an inquiry into the future structure of the 
electric utility industry in Wisconsin. The goals of 
Wisconsin utility regulation and the principles to be 
used in choosing among alternative proposals have

been identified. WP&L has submitted its preferred 
structure which, in summary form, calls for open 
access to transmission and distribution systems and 
a competitive power generation marketplace. It is 
not possible at this time to predict the outcome 
of these proceedings.  

Financing and Capital Structure 

The level of short-term borrowings fluctuates based 
on seasonal corporate needs, the timing of long-term 
financing and capital market conditions. The 
Company's operating subsidiaries generally issue 
short-term debt to provide interim financing of con
struction and capital expenditures in excess of avail
able internally generated funds. The subsidiaries 
periodically reduce their outstanding short-term 
debt through the issuance of long-term debt and 
through the Company's additional investment in 
their common equity. To maintain flexibility in its 
capital structure and to take advantage of favorable 
short-term rates, the Company also used proceeds 
from the sales of accounts receivable and unbilled 
revenues to finance a portion of its long-term cash 
needs. The Company anticipates that short-term 
debt funds will continue to be available at reason
able costs due to strong ratings by independent util
ity analysts and rating services. WP&L commercial 
paper has been rated A-1+ by Standard & Poor's 
Corp. and P-1 by Moody's Investors Service.  

Bank lines of credit of $97.5 million at December 31, 
1994, are available to support these borrowings.  

The Company's capitalization at December 31, 
1994, including the current maturities of long-term 
debt, variable-rate demand bonds and short-term 
debt, consisted of 48.8 percent common equity, 4.9 
percent preferred stock and 46.3 percent long-term 
debt. The common-equity-to-total-capitalization 
ratio at December 31, 1994, increased to 48.8 per
cent from 47.9 percent at December 31, 1993.  

The retail rate order effective January 1, 1995, 
requires WP&L to maintain a utility common equity 
level of 51.93 percent of total utility capitalization 
during the two-year test year ending December 31, 
1996. In addition, the PSCW ordered that it must 
approve the payment of dividends by WP&L to the 
Company that are in excess of the level forecasted 
for 1995 ($58.1 million), if such dividends would 
reduce WP&L's average common equity ratio below 
51.93 percent.



Capital Requirements 

The Company's largest subsidiary, WP&L, is capital
intensive and requires large investments in longl ived 
assets. Therefore, the Company's most significant 

Construction expenditures........................................................  
Changes in working capital and other.......................................  
Construction and operating capital...........................................  
Manufactured gas plant site remediation expenditures..............  
Total capital requirem ents.........................................................  

Included in the construction expenditure estimates, 
in addition to the recurring additions and improve
ments to the distribution and transmission systems, 
are the following: 1) expenditures for managing and 
controlling electric line losses and for the electric 
delivery system that will reduce electric line losses 
and enhance WP&L's interconnection capability 
with other utilities; 2) expenditures related to envi
ronmental compliance issues, including the instal
lation of additional emissions-monitoring equip
ment and coal-handling equipment; 3) expenditures 
associated with the construction of an 86-megawatt 
combustion-turbine generator expected to become 
operational in 1996.  

The steam generator tubes at the Kewaunee Nuclear 
Power Plant ("Kewaunee") are susceptible to corro
sion characteristics, a condition that has been ex
perienced throughout the nuclear industry. Annual 
inspections are performed to identify degraded 
tubes. Degraded tubes are either repaired by sleeving 
or are removed from service by plugging. The steam 
generators were designed with an approximately 15 
percent heat transfer margin, meaning that full 
power should be sustainable with the equivalent of 
15 percent of the steam generator tubes plugged.  
Tube plugging and the build-up of deposits on the 
tubes affect the heat-transfer capability of the steam 
generators to the point where eventually full-power 
operation is not possible and there is a gradual 
decrease in the capacity of the plant. The plant's 
capacity could be reduced by as much as 20 percent 
by the year 2013 when the current operating license 
expires. Currently, the equivalent of approximately 
12 percent of the tubes in the steam generators are 
plugged. WP&L and the joint-owners recently com
pleted studies evaluating the economics of replacing 
the two steam generators at Kewaunee. The studies 
resulted in the conclusion that the most prudent

capital requirements relate to WP&L construction 
expenditures. Estimated capital requirements of 
WP&L for the next five years are as follows: 

Capital Requirements 
1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

(in millions) 
..... $131.2 $100.4 $132.2 $119.6 $130.6 

(4.6) 5.5 67.0 16.3 (3.8) 
..... 126.6 94.9 199.2 135.9 126.8 
..... 2.0 9.2 10.5 9.6 .6 
..... $128.6 $104.1 $209.7 $145.5 $127.4

course of action is to continue operation of the 
existing steam generators. WP&L and the other 
joint-owners continue to evaluate appropriate strat
egies, including replacement, as wel as continued 
operation of the steam generators without replace
ment. WP&L and the joint-owners also continue to 
fund the development of welded repair technology 
for steam generator tubes. The plant is expected to 
be operated until at least 2013. WP&L and the 
joint-owners are also continuing to evaluate and 
implement initiatives to improve the performance of 
Kewaunee, which already performs at above-average 
levels for the industry. These initiatives include con
version from a 12-month to an 18-month fuel cycle 
and numerous other cost reduction measures. These 
initiatives have resulted in reductions in Kewaunee 
operating and maintenance costs since 1991.  

HDC has ex panded its energy-related products 
and services business and its environmental services 
through investment in existing businesses during 
1994. In addition to its investment in affordable 
housing, HPI continues to market its affordable 
housing expertise by expanding its business to pro
vide assistance to other corporate/public investors 
in their development, operation and financing of 
affordable housing projects. HDC has begun an 
assessment of the strategic fit of its utility service 
business and is considering various alternatives, in
cluding the possible sale of part or all of this business.  

In 1994, A&C Enercom sold its EcoGroup opera
tions. EcoGroup, a Phoenix, Arizona-based com
pany initially acquired by A&C Enercom in 1993, 
provided energy and environmental programs 
primarily for the electric gas utility industry.
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Capital Resources 

One of the Company's objectives is to finance con
struction expenditures through internally generated 
funds supplemented, when required, by outside 
financing. With this objective in place, the Com
pany has financed an average of 85 percent of its 
construction expenditures during the last five years 
from internal sources. However, during the next five 
years, the Company expects this percentage to be 
reduced primarily due to the continuation of major 
construction expenditures and the maturity of $64 
million of WP&L first mortgage bonds. External 
financing sources, such as the issuance of long-term 
debt, common stock and short-term borrowings, 
will be used by the Company to finance the remain
ing construction expenditure requirements for this 
period. Current forecasts are that $40.5 million of 
additional equity and $65 million of long-term debt 
will be issued over the next three years.  

In 1994, the Company increased its dividends by 1.1 
percent and issued 337,980 new shares of common 
stock through its Dividend Reinvestment and Stock 
Purchase Plan and 401(k) Savings Plan, generating 
proceeds of $9.7 million.  

INFLATION 

Under current rate-making methodologies pre
scribed by the various commissions that regulate 
WP&L, projected or forecasted operating costs, 
including the impacts of inflation, are incorporated 
into WP&L revenue requirements. Accordingly, the 
impacts of inflation on WP&L are currently mitigat
ed. Although rates will be held flat until at least 24 1997, management ex ects that any impact of infla
tion will be mitigated by customer growth and pro
ductivity improvements. Inflationary impacts on the 
non-regulated businesses are not anticipated to be 
material to the Company.  

* OTHER EVENTS 

Coal Contract Penalty 

In November 1989, the PSCW concluded that 
WP&L did not properly administer a coal contract, 
resulting in an assessment to compensate ratepayers 
for excess fuel costs having been incurred. As a 
result, WP&L recorded a reserve in 1989 that had 
an after-tax effect of reducing 1989 net income by 
$4.9 million. The PSCW decision was found to 
represent unlawful retroactive rate-making by both 
the Dane County Circuit Court and the Wisconsin 
Court of Appeals. The case was then appealed to 
the Wisconsin Supreme Court.

In January 1994, the Wisconsin Supreme Court affir
med the decisions of the Dane County Circuit Court 
and Wisconsin Court of Appeals. In management's 
opinion, all avenues for appeal have been exhausted.  
As a result, WP&L reversed the entire reserve and 
was also allowed to collect interest on amounts of the 
penalty previously refunded to ratepayers. The rever
sal of the reserve plus interest had an after-tax effect 
of increasing net income in 1994 by $5.3 million.  

Early Retirement and Severance Programs 

Given the expectation of increasing competition, 
WP&L has continued to reengineer its processes to 
implement cost efficiencies in its operations. In con
nection with these efforts, WP&L offered voluntary 
early retirement pro grams and voluntary severance 
programs to affected employees in 1994 and 1993.  
These programs primarily closed late in the fourth 
quarter of 1994 and 1993.  

In terms of pre-tax costs, the early retirement pro
grams totalled $9.8 million, and the severance pro
grams totalled $3.9 million for a grand total o 
$13.7 million in 1994. For 1993, program costs 
totalled $1.8 million.  

Coal Transporter's Strike 

One of WP&L's major coal transporters experienced 
a labor strike during the third quarter of 1994.  
During the term of the strike (55 days), WP&L's abil
ity to receive coal from its suppliers was impaired, 
which required WP&L to use some of its existing 
coal reserves and to purchase additional power. On 
August 29, 1994, President Clinton, acting under the 
Railway Labor Act, forced a temporary end (the 
"cooling off period") to the strike by ordering the 
railroad union employees back to work and estab
lishing a three-member Presidential Emergency 
Board to draft a recommended settlement. Railroad 
management and the United Transportation Union 
have subsequently settled on a contract. As of 
December 31, 1994, the existing and anticipated 
financial impact on WP&L's operating results was 
not material.  

Environmental 

WP&L cannot precisely forecast the effect of future 
environmental regulations by federal, state and local 
authorities upon its generating, transmission and 
other facilities, or its operations, but has taken steps 
to anticipate the future while meeting the require
ments of current environmental regulations. The 
Clean Air Act Amendments of 1977 and subsequent 
amendments to the Clean Air Act, as well as the 
new laws affecting the handling and disposal of



solid and hazardous wastes, along with the clean air 
legislation passed in 1990 by Congress, could affect 
the siting, construction and operating costs of both 
present and future generating units.  

Under the Federal Clean Water Act, National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permits 
for generating station discharge into waterways 
are required to be obtained from the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources. WP&L has 
obtained such permits for all of its generating sta
tions or has filed timely applications for renewals.  

Air quality regulations promulgated by the DNR in 
accordance with federal standards impose statewide 
restrictions on the emission of particulates, sulfur 
dioxide, nitrogen oxides and other air pollutants 
and require permits from the DNR for the operation 
of emission sources. WP&L currently has the neces
sary permits to operate its fossil-fueled generating

facilities. However, beginning in 1994, new permits 
were required for all major facilities in Wisconsin.  
WP&L's Columbia Generating facility submitted a 
permit application on May 1, 1994. The remaining 
facilities will be addressed in early 1995.  

WP&L's compliance strategy for Wisconsin's 1993 
sulfur dioxide law and the Federal Clean Air Act 
Amendments required plant upgrades at its generat
ing facilities. The majority of these projects were 
completed in 1993 and 1994. WP&L has installed 
continuous emissions monitoring systems at all of its 
coal-fired boilers. No additional costs for compli
ance with these acid-rain-prevention requirements 
are anticipated at this time.  

Also see Note 11 c in the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for a discussion of WP&L's 
manufactured gas plant sites.

, REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

WPL Holdings, Inc. management is responsible for 
all the information appearing in this annual report 
and for the accuracy and internal consistency of 
that information. The consolidated financial state
ments that follow have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. In 
addition to selecting appropriate accounting princi
ples, management is responsible for the manner of 
presentation and for the reliability of the financial 
information. In fulfilling that responsibility, it is 
necessary for management to make estimates based 
on currently available information and judgments 
of current conditions and circumstances.  

Erroll B. Davis Jr.  
President and Chief Executive Officer 
WPL Holdings, Inc.  

Edward M. Gleason 
Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary 
WPL Holdings, Inc.

Through a well-developed system of internal con
trols, management seeks to ensure the integrity and 
objectivity of the financial information presented 
in this report. This system of internal control is 
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 
assets of the company are safeguarded and that the 
transactions are executed according to management's 
authorizations and are recorded in accordance with 
the appropriate accounting principles.  

The Board of Directors participates in the financial 
information reporting process through its Audit 
Committee.

February 1, 1995
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* REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To WPL Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets and statements of capitalization of 
WPL HOLDINGS, INC. (a Wisconsin corporation) 
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, 
common shareholders' investment and cash flows 
for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 1994. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the company's management.  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with gener
ally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan
cial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentations. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of WPL Holdings, Inc. and sub
sidiaries as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows 
for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 1994, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles.  

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
February 1, 1995
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
Year Ended December 31 

1994 1993 1992 
(in thousands except for per-share data) 

Operating revenues: 
Electric ....................................................................................................... $531,747 $503,187 $477,735 
Gas ................................................ 139,646 137,270 119,362 
Fees, rents and other................................................................................ 144,766 13,4 8 7,17 

816,159 71,943 673,73 

Operating expenses: 
Electric production fuels............................................................................. 123,469 123,919 123,440 
Purchased pow er ........................................................................................ 37,913 28,574 24,427 
Purchased gas ............................................................................................. 88,553 90,505 77,112 
O ther operation.......................................................................................... 279,721 256,509 196,044 
M aintenance............................................................................................... 41,227 44,763 45,081 
Depreciation and amortization ................................................................... 81,480 69,112 59,949 
Taxes other than income .......................................................................... 33,787 32,378 29,261 

686,150 6452760 555,314 

Operating income...... ............................................ 130009 126,183 117,95 

Other income and (deductions): 
Allowance for equity funds used during construction ....................... 3,009 2,977 2,351 
Other, net.............................................................. 7,610 (633) 2 

10619 4,741 

Interest expense: 
Interest on debt ........................................................... 37,686 38,073 38,954 
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction............................ (1,029) (1,053) (1,329) 

36,657 37,02 _37625 

Income before income taxes.................................................................. 103,971 91,507 85,075 
Incom e taxes......................................................................................... 35,411 25,056 23,257 
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary................................................. 3,310 3,928....1 
N et incom e ........................................................................................... $ 656250 $ 6 5 3 $ ___ 

Weighted average number of shares of common stock 
outstanding 1........................................... 3 2 7s9 27 

Earnings per share $....................................... 2.13 $ 2.11 $ 2.10 

Cash dividends paid per share ....... ......................... $ 1.92 $ 1.90 $ 1.86

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



WPL HOLDINGS, INC.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

Year Ended December 31 
1994 1993 

ASSETS (dollars in thousands) 

Utility plant: 
Plant in service

Electric ............................................................................................................................ $1,611,351 $1,518,701 
Ga................................... 204,514 194,283 

Water ............. .............. 22,070 20,437 
Common ...... ..................................................... 134 106,80 

1,961,189 1,840,224 
Dedicated decommissioning funds 5 498 

2,012,980 1,890,027 
Less - accumulated provision for depreciation 8 7 

1,204,127 1,127,000 
Construction work in progress 42,732 75,732 
Nuclear fuel, net 19,396 1 

Total utility plant........................................................ 55 1,2,3 
Other property and equipment: 

Rental, net.............................................................................. 96,536 100,515 
Other, net...................................................  

Total other property and equipment........................................ 123,229 118,387 
Investments............................................................5 
Current assets: 

Cash and equivalents..................................................................................................... . ...... 7,273 19,468 
Net accounts receivable and unbilled revenue, less allowance for doubtful accounts of 

$1,964 and $1,662, respectively............................................ 71,465 67,623 
Coal, at average cost ........................................................................................................... 15,824 16,042 
M aterials and supplies, at average cost..............................................................................21,618 21,679 
Gas in storage, at average cost ....................................................................................... ... . 7,975 8,754 
Prepaym ents and other ..................................................................................................... .930 27 2 2 

Total current assets .................................................. j14,44 1 7 
Restricted cash .......................................................... 3 6712 
Deferred charges: 

Regulatory assets................................................................ 144,476 148,805 
Other.........................................................................0 

Total deferred charges ......................................................................... ................ i 2 446 2 376 
TOTAL ASSETS...................................................... $1,805,901 $,6899 

28 CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capitalization: 

Common shareowners' investment......................................... $ 597,798 $ 582,966 
Subsidiary preferred stock not mandatorily redeemable.............................................. 59,963 59,963 
Long-term debt, net...................................................48,0 4 

Total capitalization.................................................1,071 1 
Current liabilities: 

Current maturities of long-term debt ............................................................................. ... . 2,832 782 
Variable rate dem and bonds .............................................................................................. . 56,975 56,975 
Short-term debt........................................................ 64,501 91,902 
Accounts payable and accruals............................................... 71,949 78,195 
Accrued payroll and vacation................................................ 17,357 17,287 
Accrued (prepaid) taxes.................................................... 6,395 (570) 
Accrued interest......................................................... 9,138 9,282 
Other................................................................. 2,5 2, 

Total current liabilities .......................................................... 25,072 275,021 
Other credits: 

Accumulated deferred income taxes................................................ 224,049 212,844 
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits...................................... 40,758 42,684 
Accrued environmental remediation costs.......... .............................. 79,280 80,973 
Deferred credits and other ...................................................... i14,871 8 43 

448,58 44 
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2 and 11) 
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES................................ $1,805,901 $1,761,899 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Year Ended December 31 

1994 1993 1992 

(dollars in thousands)

Cash flows generated from (used for) operating activities: 
Net income...........................................  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash generated from 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization ...........................  
Deferred income taxes................................  
Investment tax credit restored........... ................  
Amortization of nuclear fuel......................  
Allowance for equity funds used during construction............  
Other...........................................  

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Restricted cash ..............................................  
Net accounts receivable and unbilled revenue... ..............  
Coal ........................... ...................  
Materials and supplies.............. ..................  
Gas in storage........................................................  
Prepayments and other ..........................................  
Accounts payable and accruals........... ....................  
Accrued taxes......................................  
Other, net...  

Net cash generated from operating activities ...............  

Cash flows generated from (used for) financing activities: 
Issuance of common stock................................  
Issuance of long-term debt..........................................................................  
Issuance of preferred stock .........................................................................  
Redem ption of preferred stock ...................................................................  
Long-term debt maturities, redemptions and sinking fund requirements ....  
N et change in short-term debt....................................................................  
Common stock cash dividends, less dividends reinvested............................  
Other, net..................... ..................  

Net cash (used for) generated from financing activities...........  

Cash flows generated from (used for) investing activities: 
Additions to utility plant, excluding AFUDC ........... .........  
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction...........  
Dedicated decommissioning funds..........................  
Purchase of other property and equipment..... ................  
Other, net ............................................  

Net cash (used for) investing activities........... ...............  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents. ....................  
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year .......................  
Cash and equivalents at end of year........ ...................  

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 

Cash paid during the year: 
Interest on debt ............................................  
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary .....................  
Income taxes .......................................  

Non-cash financing activities: 
Dividends reinvested .................................  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

$ 65,250 $ 62,523 $ 58,007

81,480 
10,321 
(1,926) 
6,707 

(3,009) 
(408) 

3,495 
(3,842) 

217 
61 

779 
(7,028) 
(6,245) 
6,965 

20,451 
173,268 

24,993 
(27,401) 
(49,357) 

(1,061) 
(52,826) 

(123,460) 
(1,029) 
(1,988) 
(6,160) 

(132,637) 

(12,195) 
19,468 

$ 7,273

$ 36,914 
$ 3,310 
$ 22,902

69,112 
5,015 
(1,967) 
7,049 

(2,977) 
7,201 

5,417 
(11,578) 

2,943 
(6) 

(4,463) 
(1,226) 

760 
1,438 
9,194 

148,435 

58,575 
11,538 
29,986 
(29,986) 

(7,257) 
20,475 

(40,342) 
(2,052) 

40,937 

(149,333) 
(1,053) 
(9,426) 

(16,553) 
2,123 

(174,242) 

15,130 
4,338 

$ 19,468

$ 36,759 
$ 3,928 
$ 20,743

59,949 
8,124 

(2,125) 
7,961 

(2,351) 
(1,731) 

23,513 
(10,744) 

2,666 
1,769 
1,403 
4,453 
.3,587 
(5,414) 

(12,020) 
137,047 

289,510 

(243,641) 
18,589 

(32,668) 
(1,462) 
30,328 

(123,321) 
(1,329) 
(3,737) 

(44,097) 
2,003 

(170,481) 

(3,106) 
7,444 

$ _4,338

$ 37,763 
$ 3,811 
$ 21,201

$ 9,653 $ 15,284 $ 17,533
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION 

Years Ended December 31 
1994 1993 

(dollars in thousands) 
Common shareowners' investment: 

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized - 100,000,000 shares; issued and 
outstanding - 30,773,588 shares and 30,438,654 shares, respectively............. $ 308 $ 305 

Additional paid-in capital................................... .............................. 304,442 297,916 
Reinvested earnings ............................................ ............................. 2 284,45 

Total common shareowners' investment.... ............................ $ 597,798 $j52,966 
Preferred stock: 

Wisconsin Power and Light Company 
Cumulative, without par value, authorized 3,750,000 shares, maximum 
aggregate stated value $150,000,000; 

Preferred stock without mandatory redemption, $100 stated value 
4.50% series, 99,970 shares outstanding ..................................................... 9,997 9,997 
4.80% series, 74,912 shares outstanding .................................................... .. 7,491 7,491 
4.96% series, 64,979 shares outstanding ..................................................... 6,498 6,498 
4.40% series, 29,957 shares outstanding ..................................................... 2,996 2,996 
4.76% series, 29,947 shares outstanding .................................................... .. 2,995 2,995 
6.20% series, 150,000 shares outstanding ................................................... .. 15,000 15,000 

Cumulative, without par value, $25 stated value; 
6.50% series, 599,460 shares outstanding ...................................................... .1 

Total preferred stock........................................ $ 59,963 

Long-term debt: 
Wisconsin Power and Light Company 

First mortgage bonds: 
Series L, 6.25% , due 1998 ............................................................................ ....... 8,899 8,899 
1984 Series A, variable rate, due 2014 (5.40% at Dec. 31, 1994) ....................... 8,500 8,500 
1988 Series A, variable rate, due 2015 (5.80% at Dec. 31, 1994).................. 14,600 14,600 
1990 Series V, 9.3%, due 2025........................................ 50,000 50,000 
1991 Series A, variable rate, due 2015 (5.95% at Dec. 31, 1994).................. 16,000 16,000 
1991 Series B, variable rate, due 2005 (5.95% at Dec. 31, 1994) ............... 16,000 16,000 
1991 Series C, variable rate, due 2000 (5.95% at Dec. 31, 1994) 1,000 1,000 
1991 Series D, variable rate, due 2000 (5.95% at Dec. 31, 1994) ....................... 875 875 
1992 Series W, 8.6%, due 2027.......... .............................. 90,000 90,000 
1992 Series X, 7.75%, due 2004......... .............................. 62,000 62,000 
1992 Series Y, 7.6%, due 2005 ........... ............................. 72,000 72,000 
1992 Series Z, 6.125%, due 1997...............................  

Total first mortgage bonds ....................................... $ 394,874 $4,74 
Heartland Development Corporation 

Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds issued by various housing and 
community development authorities, due 2004-2024, 1.8%-7.55% .................... 39,169 40,010 

Other mortgage notes payable, due 1996-2042, 0%-10.75%................................. . 415 
$ 80,404 $ 78,891 

WPL Holdings, Inc. 
8.96% Senior notes, due 1997........................................... 10,000 10,000 
8.59% Senior notes, due 2004........................................... 24,000 
Other .......... ............................................... _ _ 519 

$ 34,000 $ 10,59 
Less 

Current maturities.................................................... (2,832) (782) 
Variable rate demand bonds............................................ (56,975) (56,975) 
Unamortized discount and premium, net......... ............................ (1,361) (1,422) 

Total long-term debt, net...............................................$ 448,110 $42,05 
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION ..................................................................... $1,10 5,8 71 $106&034 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREOWNERS' INVESTMENT 

Years Ended December 31 
1994 1993

(dollars in thousands) 

Common stock:
Balance at beginning of year.......................................................................  

Issued in connection with public offering ..............................................  
Issued in connection with acquisitions...................................................  
Issued in connection with dividend reinvestment plan ...........................  

Balance at end of year ................................................................................  

Additional paid-in capital: 
Balance at beginning of year.......................................................................  

Received in connection with public offering ..........................................  
Received in connection with acquisitions...............................................  
Received in connection with dividend reinvestment plan.......................  
Common stock issuance expense...........................................................  
O ther ....................................................................................................  

Balance at end of year ................................................................................  

Reinvested earnings: 
Balance at beginning of year.......................................................................  

Net income ............................................................................................  
Cash dividends ($1.92 per share, $1.90 per share, 

and $1.86 per share, respectively) ....................................................  
Expense of issuing stock and other........................................................  

Balance at end of year ................................................................................  
TOTAL COMMON SHAREOWNERS' INVESTMENT...............................  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

$ 305 $ 278 $ 273 
- 17 -

3 
308 

297,916 

9,650 

(3,124) 
304,442 

284,745 
65,250 

(59,010) 
2,063 

293,048 
$597,798

5 
5 

305 

204,041 
58,558 
20,721 
15,279 
(1,888) 
1,205 

297,916 

279,217 
62,523 

(55,626) 
(1,369) 

284,745 
$582,966

5 
278 

187,532 

17,528 

(1,019) 
204,041 

271,854 
58,007 

(50,201) 
(443) 

279,217 
$483,536

INOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (dollars in thousands except as otherwise indicated) 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES

a. Business and Consolidation: 31

WPL Holdings, Inc. (the "Company" or "WPLH") 
is the parent holding company of Wisconsin Power 
and Light Company ("WP&L") and Heartland 
Development Corporation ("HDC"). The consoli
dated financial statements include the Company and 
its consolidated subsidiaries, WP&L and HDC, 
along with their respective subsidiaries. Certain 
amounts from prior years have been reclassified 
to conform with the current year presentation.  

WP&L is a public utility predominantly engaged in 
the transmission and distribution of electric energy 
and the generation and bulk purchase of electric ener
gy for sale. WP&L also transports, distributes and 
sells natural gas purchased from gas suppliers. Nearly

all of WP&L's retail customers are located in south 
and central Wisconsin. WP&L's principal consolidat
ed subsidiary is South Beloit Water, Gas and Electric 
Company.  

HDC and its principal subsidiaries are engaged in 
business development in three major areas: 1) envi
ronmental services through the Environmental 
Holding Company ("EHC"), the parent company of 
RMT, Inc. ("RMT"), Jones and Neuse, Inc. and QES, 
Inc.; 2) affordable housing and historic rehabilitation 
through Heartland Properties, Inc. ("HPI"); and 3) 
energy services, which includes ENSERV, Inc., A&C 
Enercom Consultants, Inc. and Entec Consulting, Inc.

1992
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b. Regulation: 

WP&I's financial records are maintained in accor
dance with the uniform system of accounts pre
scribed by its regulators. The Public Service Com
mission of Wisconsin ("PSCW") and the Illinois 
Commerce Commission have jurisdiction over retail 
rates, which represent a pproximately 83 percent of 
electric revenues plus all gas revenues. The Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") has juris
diction over wholesale electric rates representing the 
balance of electric revenues. Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 71, "Accounting 
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" pro
vides that rate-regulated public utilities, such as 
WP&L, record certain costs and credits allowed in 
the ratemaking process in different periods than for 
unregulated entities. These are deferred as regulatory 
assets or regulatory liabilities and are recognized in 
the Consolidated Statements of Income at the time 
they are reflected in rates.  

c. Utility Plant and Other Property and Equipment: 

Utility plant and other property and equipment are 
recorded at original cost and cost, respectively.  
Utility plant costs include financing costs that are 
capitalized through the PSCW-approved allowance 
for funds used during construction ("AFUDC"). The 
AFUDC capitalization rates approximate WP&L's 
cost of capital. These capitalized costs are recovered 
in rates as the cost of the utility plant is depreciated.  

Normal repairs, maintenance and minor items of 
utility plant and other property and equipment are 
expensed. Ordinary utility plant retirements, includ
ing removal costs less salvage value, are charged to 
accumulated depreciation upon removal from utility 
plant accounts, and no gain or loss is recognized.  
Upon retirement or sale of other property and 
equipment, the cost and related accumulated depre
ciation are removed from the accounts and any gain 
or loss is included in other income and deductions.  

d. Nuclear Fuel: 

Nuclear fuel is recorded at its original cost and is 
amortized to expense based upon the quantity of 
heat produced for the generation of electricity. This 
accumulated amortization assumes spent nuclear fuel 
will have no residual value. Estimated future disposal 
costs of such fuel are expensed based on kilowatt
hours generated.  

e. Revenue: 

WP&L accrues utility revenues for services provided 
but not yet billed. HDC records revenues earned but 
not billed and revenues from professional services ren
dered as incurred using a time-and-materials basis.

f. Electric Production Fuels and Purchased Gas: 

(1) Electric Production Fuels: Through 1994, 
the PSCW retail electric rates provided a 
range from which actual fuel costs could 
vary in relation to costs forecasted and used 
in rates. If actual fuel costs fell outside this 
range, a hearing could be held to determine 
if a rate change was necessary, and a rate 
increase or decrease could result.  

Beginning with WP&L's latest rate order 
UR-109, effective January 1, 1995, the auto
matic fuel adjustment was eliminated. In its 
absence, WP&L will benefit from reductions 
in fuel cost. Conversely, WP&L will be 
exposed to increases in fuel costs.  

An automatic fuel adjustment clause for the 
FERC wholesale portion of WP&L's electric 
business operates to increase or decrease 
monthly rates based on changes in fuel costs.  

(2) Purchased Gas: Through 1994, WP&L's 
base gas-cost recovery rates permitted the 
recovery of or refund to all customers for 
any increases or decreases in the cost of gas 
purchased from WP&L's suppliers through a 
monthly purchased gas adjustment clause.  

Beginning with UR-109, the monthly pur
chased gas adjustment clause was also elimi
nated. In the future, the fluctuations in the 
commodity cost of gas above or below a pre
scribed commodity price index will serve to 
increase or decrease WP&L's margin on gas 
sales. Fixed demand costs are excluded from 
the incentive program. Both benefits and 
exposures are subject to ratepayer sharing 
provisions, which are capped at $1.1 million.  

g. Cash and Equivalents: 

The Company considers all highly liquid debt 
instruments purchased with a maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying 
amount approximates fair value because of the short 
maturity of these items.  

h. Income Taxes: 

The Company files a consolidated federal income 
tax return. Under the terms of an agreement 
between WPLH and its subsidiaries, WP&L and 
HDC calculate their respective federal tax provi
sions and make payments to WPLH as if they were 
separate taxable entities. Beginning in 1993, the 
Company fully provides deferred income taxes in 
accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for



Income Taxes," to reflect tax effects of reporting book 
and tax items in different periods.  

As part of HPI's investments in affordable housing, 
HPI is eligible to claim affordable housing and historic 
rehabilitation credits. These tax credits can be recog
nized to the extent the Company has consolidated 
taxes payable.  

i. Goodwill: 

The excess of the purchase cost over the fair value 
of net assets acquired is amortized over 20 to 30 

NOTE 2. PROPERTY 

a. Jointly-Owned Utility Plants: 

WP&L participates with other Wisconsin utilities in 
the construction and operation of several jointly
owned utility generating plants. The chart below

years on a straight-line basis based on its estimated 
useful benefit. Subsequent to its acquisitions, the 
Company continually evaluates whether later events 
and circumstances have occurred that indicate the 
remaining estimated useful life of goodwill may 
warrant revision or that the remaining balance of 
goodwill may not be recoverable. To evaluate good
will for possible impairment, the Company uses 
a forecast of the related business's discounted 
earnings over the remaining life of the goodwill.  
Goodwill (net of accumulated amortization) was 
$20,135 and $20,920 at December 31, 1994 and 
1993, respectively.

represents WP&L's proportionate share of such 
plants as reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
at December 31, 1994 and 1993:

Coal: 
Columbia Energy 

Center 
Edgewater Unit 4 
Edgewater Unit 5 

Nuclear: 
Kewaunee Nuclear 

Power Plant 
Total

Ownership Inservice Plant MW 
Interest % Date Capacity

46.2 1975 & 1978 
68.2 1969 
75.0 1985 

41.0 1974

1,023 
330 
380

Plant 
in 

Service

$159,650 
50,206 

225,336

1994 
Accumulated 
Provision for 
Depreciation 

$ 78,573 
25,394 
63,324

535 132,726 72,637 
$567,918 $23,

CWIP 

$1,484 
181 
26

Plant 
in 

Service

$159,818 
49,631 

224,902

1993 
Accumulated 
Provision for 
Depreciation CWIP

$ 76,602 
24,160 
58,338

$1,986 
83 
21

452 133,342 69,647 848 

$2,143 $567,693 $228,747 $2 938

Each of the respective joint-owners finances its por
tion of construction costs. WP&L's share of opera
tion and maintenance expenses is included in the 
Consolidated Statements of Income.

33
b. Capital Expenditures: 

The Company's capital expenditures for 1995 
are estimated to total $102 million. Substantial 
commitments have been incurred for such 
expenditures.

, NOTE 3. DEPRECIATION 

The Company uses the straight-line method 
of depreciation. For utility plant, straight-line 
depreciation is computed on the average balance 
of depreciable property at individual straight
line PSCW approved rates that consider the esti
mated useful life and removal cost or salvage 
value as follows:

Electric Gas Water Common

1994 
1993 
1992

3.2% 
3.2% 
3.2%

3.7% 
3.7% 
3.7%

2.5% 
2.5% 
2.6%

7.2% 
7.3% 
7.1%

Estimated useful lives related to other property and 
equipment are from 3 to 12 years for equipment and 
31.5 to 40 years for buildings.
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NOTE 4. NUCLEAR OPERATIONS

Depreciation expense related to the Kewaunee 
Nuclear Power Plant ("Kewaunee") includes a pro
vision to accrue for the cost of decommissioning 
over the life of the plant, which totalled $13.4 mil
lion, $6.1 million and $3.9 million in 1994, 1993 
and 1992, respectively. Wisconsin utilities with own
ership of nuclear generating plants are required by 
the PSCW to establish and make annual contribu
tions to external trust funds to provide for plant 
decommissioning. Additionally, in July 1994, the 
PSCW issued a generic order covering utilities that 
have nuclear generation. This order standardizes the 
escalation assumptions to be used in determining 
nuclear decommissioning liabilities.  

WP&L's share of the decommissioning costs is esti
mated to be $159 million (in 1994 dollars, assuming 
the plant is operating through 2013) based on a 1992 
study, using the immediate dismantlement method 
of decommissioning. The undiscounted amount of 
decommissioning costs estimated to be expended 
between the years 2014 and 2050 is $1.016 billion.  
Aftertax earnings on the tax-qualified and non
tax-qualified decommissioning funds are assumed 
to be 6.1 percent and 5.1 percent respectively. The 
future escalation rate is assumed to be 6.5 percent.  

Decommissioning costs and a charge to offset earn
ings on the external trusts are recorded as portions 
of depreciation expense and accumulated provision 
for depreciation on the Statements of Consolidated 
Income and the Consolidated Balance Sheets, 
respectively. As of December 31, 1994, the total 
decommissioning costs included in the accumulated 
rovision for depreciation were approximately 
62.8 million.  

WP&L has established external trusts to hold de
commissioning funds, and the PSCW has approved 
WP&L's funding plan which provides for annual 
contributions of current accruals over the remaining 

K> NOTE 5. NET ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

WP&L has a contract with a financial organization 
to sell, with limited recourse, certain accounts receiv
able and unbilled revenues. These receivables include 
customer receivables resulting from sales to other 
public utilities as well as from billings to the co
owners of the jointly-owned electric generating plants 
that WP&L operates. The contract allows WP&L 
to sell up to $150 million of receivables at any time.  
Expenses related to the sale of receivables are paid to

service lives of the nuclear plants. The earnings on 
the external trusts accumulate in the fund balance 
and in the accumulated provision for depreciation.  
Such earnings on the external trust funds, which 
have been offset by a charge to depreciation expense 
on the Statements of Consolidated Income, were 
$2.7, $1.1 and $1.2 million for the years ended 
December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.  

Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the 
U.S. Department of Energy ("DOE") is responsible 
for the ultimate storage and disposal of spent 
nuclear fuel removed from nuclear reactors.  

Interim storage space for spent nuclear fuel is cur
rently provided at Kewaunee. Currently there is on
site storage capacity for spent fuel through the year 
1999. Nuclear fuel, net, at December 31, consists of:

Original cost of nuclear fuel 
Less: Accumulated 

amortization 
Nuclear fuel, net

1994 1993 
$155,190 $147,325 

135,794 _129,325 
$ 139 $ 18,000

The Price Anderson Act provides for the payment 
of funds for public liability claims arising from a 
nuclear incident. Accordingly, in the event of a 
nuclear incident, WP&L, as a 41-percent owner of 
Kewaunee, is subject to an overall assessment of 
approximately $32.5 million per incident for its 
ownership share of this reactor, not to exceed $4.1 
million payable in any given year.  

Through its membership in Nuclear Electric Insur
ance Limited, WP&L has obtained property damage 
and decontamination insurance totalling $1.5 billion 
for loss from damage at Kewaunee. In addition, 
WP&L maintains outage and replacement power 
insurance coverage totalling $101.4 million in the 
event an outage exceeds 21 weeks.

the financial organization under this contract and 
include, along with various other fees, a monthly dis
count charge on the outstanding balance of receiv
ables sold that approximated a 4.86 percent annual 
rate during 1994. These costs are recovered in retail 
utility rates as an operating expense. All billing and 
collection functions remain the responsibility of 
WP&L. The contract expires August 19, 1995, 
unless extended by mutual agreement.



As of December 31, 1994 and 1993, proceeds from 
the sale of accounts receivable totalled $76.5 million 
and $74 million, respectively. During 1994, WP&L 
sold an average of $82.3 million of accounts receivable 
per month, compared with $75.9 million in 1993.

As a result of its diversified customer base and 
WP&L's sale of receivables, the Company does 
not have any significant concentrations of credit 
risk in the December 31, 1994, net accounts 
receivable balance.

. NOTE 6. REGULATORY ASSETS AND REGULATORY LIABILITIES 
Certain costs and credits are deferred and amortized in accordance with authorized or expected rate-making 
treatment. As of December 31, 1994 and 1993, regulatory created assets include the following:

1994 
Environm ental remediation costs.............................. . ................................ $ 82,179 
Tax related (see Note 8) ....................................... 43,736 
Jurisdictional plant differences ............................................ 7,173 
Decontamination and decommissioning costs of federal 

enrichment facilities .................................................... 7,100 
Other ................................................... 4,288 

$144,476

1993 
$ 82,380 

47,787 
6,533 

6,181 
5,924 

$148,805

As of December 31, 1994 and 1993, regulatory created liabilities included $6,738 and $6,618 respectively, for 
amounts due to customers related to the sale of air emissions credits.

NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

a. Pension Plans: 

WP&L has non-contributory, defined benefit retire
ment plans covering substantially all employees. The 
benefits are based upon years of service and levels of 
compensation. WP&L's funding policy is to contrib
ute at least the statutory minimum to a trust.  

The projected unit credit actuarial cost method was 
used to compute net pension costs and the accumu
lated and projected benefit obligations. The discount 
rate used in determining those benefit obligations

was 8.25, 7.25 and 8.00 percent for 1994, 1993 and 
1992 respectively. The long-term rate of return on 
assets used in determining those benefit obligations 
was 9.00, 9.75, and 10.00 percent for 1994, 1993, 
and 1992, respectively.  

The following table sets forth the funded status of the 
WP&L plans and amounts recognized in the Com
pany's Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 
1994 and 1993:

Accumulated benefit obligation 
Vested benefits ..........................................................................................................  
N on-vested benefits ..................................................................................................  

Projected benefit obligation...........................................................................................  
Plan assets at fair value, primarily common stocks and fixed income securities.............  
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation.......................................................  
Unrecognized net transition asset ..................................................................................  
Unrecognized prior service cost .....................................................................................  
Unrecognized net loss....................................................................................................  
Prepaid pension costs, included in deferred charges and other.......................................

1994 

$(134,829) 
(3,295) 

$(138,124) 
$(154,283) 

178,095 
23,812 
(19,376) 

5,679 
14,737 

$ 24,852

The net pension (benefit) recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for 1994, 1993 
the following components:

1994 
Service cost .............................................................................................. $ 5,123 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ............................................ 12,051 
Actual return on assets ............................................................................ 1,016 
Amortization and deferral ....................................................................... (17,795) 
Net pension cost (benefit)........................................................................ $ 395

1993 
$ 4,263 

11,614 
(24,759) 
_8,430 

=45

35
1993 

$(135,303) 
(2,962) 

$(138,265) 
$(164,271) 

183,881 
19,610 

(21,823) 
7,691 

20,650 
$ 26,128 

and 1992 included 

1992 
$ 3,912 
10,615 

(12,143) 
(5,317) 

$(2,933)
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b. Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance: 

Effective January 1, 1993, the Company prospectively 
adopted SFAS No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for 
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions." SFAS 
No. 106 establishes standards of financial accounting 
and reporting for the Company's postretirement 
health care and life insurance benefits. SFAS No. 106 
requires the accrual of the expected cost of such bene
fits during the employees' years of service based on 
actuarial methodologies that closely parallel pension

accounting requirements. WP&L has elected delayed 
recognition of the transition obligation and is amor
tizing the discounted present value of the transition 
obligation to expense over 20 years. For WP&L, the 
cost of providing postretirement benefits, including 
the transition obligation, is being recovered in retail 
rates under current regulatory practices.  

The following table sets forth the plans' funded status:

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 
Retirees ..... ....... ...............................  
Fully eligible active plan participants..............................  
Other active plan participants..................................  

Accumulated benefit obligation ....................................  
Plan assets at fair value.........................................  
Accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets .....................  
Unrecognized transition obligation.................................  
Unrecognized loss ....................... .................  
Accrued postretirement benefits liability..............................

1994 

$(29,273) 
(5,998) 
(7,675) 

(42,946) 
9,767 

S(33,179) 
26,474 
(2,570) 

$ (9,275)

1993 

$(27,358) 
(5,429) 
(9,980) 

(42,767) 
7,073 

$(35,694) 
29,638 
2 ,025 

$L(4, 0 31

For 1994 and 1993, the annual net postretirement benefits costs recognized in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income consist of the following components:

Service cost..................................................................................................................  
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation.......................................................................  
Actual return on plan assets ...............................................................................................  
Amortization of transition obligation .................................................................................  
Amortization and deferral ..................................................................................................  
Net postretirement benefit cost...........................................................................................

1994 
$1,739 
3,135 

(253) 
1,527 
(381) 

$5,767

1993 
$1,463 

3,151 
(696) 

1,560 
$ 27 

55Aa

The postretirement benefits cost components for 36 1994 were calculated assuming health-care cost 
trend rates ranging from 11.5 percent for 1994 
and decreasing to 5 percent by the year 2002. The 
health-care cost trend rate considers estimates of 
health-care inflation, changes in utilization or de
livery, technological advances, and changes in the 
health status of the plan participants. Increasing the 
health-care cost trend rate by one percentage point 
in each year would increase the accumulated post
retirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 
1994, by $2.5 million and the aggregate of the service 
and interest cost components of the net periodic post
retirement benefit cost for the year by $.4 million.  

The assumed discount rate used in determining the 
accumulated postretirement obligation was 8.25 
and 7.25 percent in 1994 and 1993, respectively.  
The long-term rate of return on assets was 9.00 and 
9.50 percent in 1994 and 1993, respectively. Plan

assets are primarily invested in common stock, 
bonds and fixed-income securities. The Company's 
funding policy is to contribute the tax-advantaged 
maximum to a trust.  

The costs for the postretirement health care and life 
insurance benefits, based on an actuarial determina
tion, were $1.3 million in 1992.  

c. Other Post-employment Benefits: 

In November 1992, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board issued SFAS No. 112, "Employers' 
Accounting for Post-employment Benefits." SFAS No.  
112, which was effective January 1, 1994, establishes 
standards of financial accounting and reporting for the 
estimated cost of benefits provided by an employer to 
former or inactive employees after employment but 
before retirement. The effect of adopting SFAS No. 112 
was not material.



, NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES 
The following table reconciles the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective income tax rate:

1994 
Statutory federal income tax rate.................................................................. 35.0% 
State income taxes, net of federal benefit...................................................... 5.3 
Investment tax credits restored ..................................................................... (1.9) 
Am ortization of excess deferred taxes........................................................... (1.6) 
Affordable housing and historical tax credits................................................ (4.6) 
Other differences, net.................................................................................... 1.9 
Effective income rate..................................................................................... 34.1%

1993 
35.0% 
5.1 

(2.1) 
(1.7) 
(5.7) 
(3.2) 
27.4%

The breakdown of income tax expense as reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income is as follows:

Current federal...........................................................................................  
Current state ..............................................................................................  
D eferred .....................................................................................................  
Investment tax credit restored ....................................................................  
Affordable housing and historical tax credits .............................................

1994 
$26,161 

5,673 
10,321 
(1,926) 
4 818) 

$35,411

1993 
$20,725 

6,500 
5,015 

(1,967) 
(5,217) 

$25,056

In 1992, deferred taxes arising from utility plant 
timing differences, the qualified nuclear decommis
sioning trust contribution, employee benefits and 
other totalled $4,104, $709, $2,081 and $1,230, 
respectively.

Accelerated depreciation and other plant related............. ..............  
Excess deferred taxes....................................................................  
Unamortized investment tax credits............... ..............  
Allowance for equity funds used during construction...... ............  
Regulatory liability ................... .........................................  
O ther................................................

Changes in WP&L's deferred income taxes arising 
from the adoption of SFAS No. 109 represent 
amounts recoverable or refundable through future 
rates and have been recorded as net regulatory 
assets totalling approximately $26 million and

The temporary differences that resulted in accumu
lated deferred income tax (assets) and liabilities as of 
December 31 are as follows:

1994 
$186,565 

21,215 
(21,784) 
14,384 
17,553 

6,116 
$224,049

1993 
$171,993 

22,744 
(22,812) 
13,518 
19,179 
8,222 

$212,844

$29 million in 1994 and 1993, respectively, on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. These net regulatory 
assets are being recovered in rates over the estimat
ed remaining useful lives of the assets to which 
they pertain.

1992 
34.0% 
7.0 
(2.7) 
(1.8) 
(7.5) 

28.4%

1992 
$19,703 

5,343 
8,124 

(2,125) 
(7,788) 

$23,.257
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* NOTE 9. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINES OF CRI 

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain bank 
lines of credit, most of which are at the bank prime 
rates, to obtain short-term borrowing flexibility, 
including pledging lines of credit as security for any 
commercial paper outstanding. Amounts available

under these lines of credit totalled $97.5 million, 
$100 million and $70 million as of December 31, 
1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. Information 
regarding short-term debt and lines of credit is as 
follows:

As of end of year 
Lines of credit borrow ings ............................................  
Commercial paper outstanding .....................................  
N otes payable outstanding............................................  
Discount rates on commercial paper .............................  
Interest rates on notes payable ......................................  

For the year ended 
Maximum month-end amount of short-term debt.........  
Average amount of short-term debt 

(based on daily outstanding balances)......................  
Average interest rate on short-term debt .......................  

NOTE 10. CAPITALIZATION 

a. Common Shareowners' Investment: 

During 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively, the 
Company issued 337,980, 451,233 and 528,142 
new shares of common stock through its Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and 401(k) 
Savings Plan, generating proceeds of $9.6 million, 
$15.3 million and $17.5 million, respectively.  

On April 27, 1993, a public offering of 1.65 million 
newly issued shares of the Company's common 
stock, priced at $35.50 per share, raised net pro38 ceeds of $56.7 million. The proceeds were used by 
the Company to refinance short-term debt and for 
general corporate purposes including construction.  

In February 1989, the Board of Directors of the 
Company declared a dividend distribution of one

1994 

$ 
$50,500 
$14,001 

5.64%-6.12% 
6.04%-6.07% 

$81,000 

$61,835 
4.49%

1993 

$ 2,000 
$49,000 
$40,954 

3.24%-3.40% 
3.34%-3.35% 

$92,000 

$56,250 
3.33%

1992 

$ 
$26,000 
$44,095 

3.15%-3.90% 
3.46%-3.62% 

$70,155 

$41,882 
3.78%

common stock purchase right ("right") on each out
standing share of the Company's common stock.  
Each right would initially entitle shareowners to buy 
one-half of one share of the Company's common 
stock at an exercise price of $60.00 per share, sub
ject to adjustment. The rights are not currently exer
cisable, but would become exercisable if certain 
events occurred related to a person or group acquir
ing or attempting to acquire 20 percent or more 
of the outstanding shares of common stock. The 
rights expire on February 22, 1999, unless the rights 
are earlier redeemed or exchanged by the Company.  

Authorized shares of common stock total 
100,000,000 as of December 31, 1994, and can 
be categorized as follows:

No. of Shares 
Issued and outstanding............................................... 30,773,588 
Reserved for issuance for Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan ................. 645,973 
Reserved for issuance for WPLH Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan......... . .......... 1,000,000 
Common Stock Rights Agreement....................................... 15,709,781 
Unreserved.....51....870....658.........................  

Total authorized ............................................... 0000

A retail rate order effective January 1, 1995, 
requires WP&L to maintain a utility common equity 
level of 51.93 percent of total utility capitalization 
during the test year January 1, 1995, to December 
31, 1996. In addition, the PSCW ordered that it

must approve the payment of dividends by WP&L to 
the Company that are in excess of the level forecasted 
in the rate order ($58.1 million), if such dividends 
would reduce WP&L's average common equity ratio 
below 51.93 percent.

I



b. Preferred Stock: 

On October 27, 1993, WP&L issued two new series 
of preferred stock through two separate public offer
ings. The 6.2 percent Series is non-redeemable for ten 
years and the 6.5 percent Series is non-redeemable 
for five years. The proceeds from the sale were used 
to retire 150,000 shares of 7.56 percent Series and 
149,865 shares of 8.48 percent Series preferred stock.  

c. Long-term Debt: 

Substantially all of WP&L's utility plant is secured 
by its first mortgage bonds. Current maturities of

* NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

a. Coal Contract Commitments: 

To ensure an adequate supply of coal, WP&L has 
entered into certain long-term coal contracts. These 
contracts include a demand or take-or-pay clause 
under which payments are required if contracted 
quantities are not purchased. Purchase obligations 
on these coal and related rail contracts total approxi
mately $149 million through December 31, 2003.  
WP&L's management believes it will meet minimum

long-term debt are as follows: $2.8 million in 1995, 
$3.3 million in 1996, $67.6 million in 1997, $11.6 
million in 1998 and $2.1 million in 1999.  

The Company has $150 million of notional princi
pal under interest rate swap contracts. The fair 
value of these contracts was not material as of 
December 31, 1994.  

The fair value of the Company's long-term debt 
based on quoted market prices for similar issues at 
December 31, 1994 and 1993, was $501,530 and 
$518,251, respectively.

coal and rail purchase obligations under the con
tracts. Minimum purchase obligations on these con
tracts over the next five years are estimated to be $25 
million in 1995 and $26 million in 1996, 1997, 1998 
and 1999, respectively.  

b. Purchased Power and Gas: 

Under firm purchase power and gas contracts, 
WP&L is obligated as follows, (dollars in millions):

1995 ..............................................  
1996 ................................................... .......  
1997 ............. .........................  
1998 .................... ..........  
1999 ................................. .......................... .  
Thereafter ...........................  

c. Manufactured Gas Plant Sites: 

Historically, WP&L has owned 11 properties that 
have been associated with the production of manu
factured gas. Currently, WP&L owns five of these 
sites, three are owned by municipalities, and the 
remaining three are owned by private companies. In 
1989, WP&L initiated investigation of these manu
factured gas plant sites. The Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources ("DNR") has been involved in 
reviewing investigation plans and has received ongoing 
reports regarding these investigations.  

In 1992, and into the beginning of 1993, WP&L con
tinued its investigations and studies. WP&L confirmed 
that there was no contamination at two of the sites.

Purchased Power 
Purchase 

Obligation MWs 
$ 8.3 1,920 

8.1 1,830 
10.9 1,944 
15.6 2,505 
18.8 2,910 

106.5 
$168.2 23,8309

Purchased Gas 
Purchase Decatherms 

Obligation (in millions) 
$ 67 89 

67 90 
55 78 
45 66 
41 53 
77 101 

$352 477

WP&L received a close-out letter from the DNR relat
ed to one of those sites and requested a close-out letter 
for the other site. Additionally, the investigation of his
torical records at a third site indicated a minimal likeli
hood of any significant environmental impacts. In 
February 1993, WP&L completed cost estimates for 
the environmental remediation of the eight remaining 
sites. The results of this analysis indicate that during 
the next 35 years, WP&L will expend approximately 
$81 million for feasibility studies, data collection, soil 
remediation activities, groundwater research and 
groundwater remediation activities, including construc
tion of slurry containment walls and the installation of 
groundwater pump and treatment facilities. This esti
mate was based on various assumptions, and is subject 
to continuous review and revision by management.
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The cost estimate set forth above assumes 4 percent 
average inflation over a 35-year period. The cost 
estimate also contemplates that primarily groundwater 
pump and treatment activities will take place after 
1998 through and including 2027. During this time, 
WP&L estimates that it will incur average annual 
costs of $2.0 million to complete the planned 
groundwater remediation activities.  

With respect to rate recovery of these costs, the 
PSCW has approved a five-year amortization of 
the unamortized balance of environmental costs 
expended to date.

In addition, WP&L is pursuing insurance recovery for 
the costs of remediating these sites and is investigating 
to determine whether there are other parties who may 
be responsible for some of the clean-up costs.  

Through 1994, management has continued its over
sight of the issues related to the above manufactured 
gas plant sites without significant revision to the 
above estimates and assumptions.  

Based on the present regulatory record at the PSCW, 
management believes that future costs of remediat
ing these manufactured gas plant sites will be recov
ered in rates.
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* NOTE 12. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the Company's consolidated operations: 

Years Ended December 31, 
1994 1993 1992 

Operation information: 
Customer revenues 

Electric.............. ................... $ 531,747 $ 503,187 $ 477,735 
Gas ................ ...................... 139,646 137,270 119,362 
Environmental services ......................... 87,673 81,396 67,533 
Other .......... . 57,093 50,090 8,643 

Total operating revenues .................... $ 816159 $ 771,943 $ 673273 

Operating income (loss) 
Electric.......... ........................ $ 120,218 $ 118,785 $ 109,459 
Gas............... .. 13,344 10,431 8,724 
Environmental engineering and consulting............ 6,038 4,219 3,542 
Other (a) ...... .............................. (9,591) (7,252) (3,766) 

Other income and (deductions), net ................... 10,619 2,344 4,741 
Interest expense, net............................. (36,657) (37,020) (37,625) 
Income taxes ................................ (35,411) (25,056) (23,257) 
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary (3,310) (3,928 (3,811) 

Net income . ............................ $ 65,250 $ 62,523 $ 58,007 

Investment information: 
Identifiable assets, including allocated 
common plant at December 31

Electric .................................................................. $1,197,060 $1,170,010 $1,064,418 
Gas ............. 235,862 228,257 210,965 
Environmental services.......................................... 41,187 40,124 31,400 
Other ............................................................... 331,792 323,508 259,115 

Total assets ....................................................... $1,805,901 $1,761,899 $1,565,898 

Other information: 
Construction and nuclear fuel expenditures 

Electric ................................. $ 113,836 $ 139,805 $ 113,252 
Gas ................. ...................... 19,683 18,876 13,974 
Other ...... ............ ................ 6169 18,538 45,60641 

Total construction and nuclear fuel expenditures $ 139,688 $ 177,219 $ 172832 

Provision for depreciation and amortization 
Electric.............. ................... $ 65,195 $ 53,398 $ 49,554 
Gas ........................................ 8,082 7,329 6,578 
Other................8,203................... 8,203 . 8,385 3,817 

Total provision for depreciation .............. $ 81,480 $ 69,112 $ 59,949 

(a) Excludes the effects of affordable housing and historical tax credits of $4.8 million, $5.2 million and $7.8 million in 1994, 1993 and 
1992, respectively.
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*NOTE 13. ACQUISITIONS

On August 31, 1993, the Company issued 515,993 
shares of Company common stock in exchange for 
the outstanding common and preferred stock of 
Jones and Neuse, Inc. ("JN"), a 250-employee envi
ronmental consulting and engineering service firm 
based in Austin, Texas. This transaction was accounted 
for as a pooling of interests. The Company positioned 
JN as a service region of its own 550-employee

environmental consulting and engineering company, 
RMT, a subsidiary of HDC.  

In February 1993, HDC acquired A&C Enercom 
Consultants, Inc., a Georgia corporation, for cash and 
new shares of the Company's common stock. A&C 
Enercom provides demand-side management and 
energy-related consulting services, primarily to public 
electric and gas utility companies.

* NOTE 14. CONSOLIDATED QuARTERLY FINANcIA DATA (Unaudited)
Seasonal factors significantly affect WP&L and, 
therefore, the data presented below should not be 
expected to be comparable between quarters nor 
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected 
for an annual period.

Quarter Ended 
1994: 
March 31........................................................  
June 30 ...........................................................  
September 30 .....................  
December 31 ......................  

1993: 
M arch 31........................................................  
June 30....................................  
Septem ber 30.................................................  
D ecem ber 31...................................................

Operating 
Revenues 

$234,178 
181,285 
193,706 
209,555 

$209,250 
173,631 
173,869 
216,307

The amounts below were not audited by indepen
dent public accountants, but reflect all adjustments 
necessary, in the opinion of the Company, for a fair 
presentation of the data.  

Operating Net Earnings 
Income Income Per Share 

(in thousands except for per-share data)

$47,245 
20,864 
33,515 
28,385 

$36,490 
19,872 
29,358 
40,463

$26,369 
10,303 
15,309 
13,269 

$19,766 
7,190 

13,258 
22,309

$.87 
.33 
.50 
.43 

$.70 
.24 
.44 
.73
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING STATISTICS

Years Ended December 31, 
1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989 1984 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
(in thousands except for per-share data) 

Operating revenues 
Electric...................................................... $531,747 $503,187 $477,735 $488,552 $470,819 $463,075 $425,004 
Gas............................................................. 139,646 137,270 119,362 117,775 110,423 107,783 146,809 
Other (a).................................................... 144,766 131,486 7 _63,22 37,249 33,960 3663 

Total operating revenues....................... 816,_159 771943 673273 6692549 618,491 604818 575,476 

Operating expenses 
Electric production fuels ........................... 123,469 123,919 123,440 130,406 125,817 127,062 119,817 
Purchased power....................................... 37,913 28,574 24,427 20,390 17,703 29,935 34,320 
Purchased gas............................................ 88,553 90,505 77,112 70,834 65,348 61,343 111,694 
Other operations and maintenance (a)...... 320,948 301,272 241,125 234,635 202,192 191,536 122,603 
Depreciation and amortization.................. 81,480 69,112 59,949 54,145 55,297 54,572 42,147 
Taxes other than income...................... 33,787 32,378 2 26534 25,820 24,193 2 

Total operating expenses ...................... 686150 645760 5 _536944 492,177 488641 452832 

Operating income ................... 130,009 126,183 117,959 132,605 126,314 116,177 122,644 

Other income (expenses), net (a).................. 7,610 (633) 2,390 3,258 (2,403) (4,716) (2,699) 
AFUDC - equity ......................................... 3,009 2,977 2,351 1,073 - - 8,421 
AFUDC - debt ............................................ 1,029 1,053 1,329 886 1,304 1,808 5,384 
Interest on debt............................................. (37,686) (38,073) (38,954) (35,691) (33,372) (31,121) (28,867 
Income before income taxes.......................... 103,971 91,507 85,075 102,131 91,843 82,148 104,883 
Income taxes................................................. (35,411) (25,056) (23,257) (32,390) (28,494) (26,855) (46,641) 
Preferred dividends of subsidiary ................. (3,310) ( (3,811) (3,81) (3,811) (3,811) (4,780) 

Net income ........................................... $ 65,250 $62?3 $_58007 $$ 59538 $ 51482 $_3462 

Per-Share Data (b) 

Earnings per share......................................... $ 2.13 $ 2.11 $ 2.10 $ 2.42 $ 2.23 $ 1.93 $ 2.06 
Cash dividends paid per share....................... $ 1.92 $ 1.90 $ 1.86 $ 1.80 $ 1.74 $ 1.68 $ 1.26 
Book value per share at year-end .................. $ 19.43 $ 19.15 $ 17.28 $ 16.77 $ 16.39 $ 15.90 $ 13.05 
Market value per share at year-end............... $ 27 3/8 $ 32 7/8 $ 33 7/8 $ 32 3/4 $ 24 1/2 $ 24 3/8 $ 29 3/4 
Shares outstanding at year-end 

(in 000s).................................................... 30,773 30,439 27,829 27,301 26,663 26,663 26,474 
Weighted average shares outstanding 

(in 000s).................................................... 30,671 29,681 27,559 27,246 26,663 26,663 25,996 

Other 

Effective income tax rate............................... 34.10% 27.40% 28.40% 32.88% 32.40% 34.30% 44.40% 
Embedded cost of long-term debt.................. 8.01% 7.77% 8.19% 8.44% 8.65% 8.65% 8.94% 
Embedded cost of preferred stock................. 5.52% 6.13% 6.36% 6.36% 6.36% 6.36% 6.86% 
Dividend coverage ratio................................ 2.97x 2.72x 2.79x 1.94x 2.90x 2.91x 3.33x 

Return on common equity...................... 11.00% 11.50% 12.40% 14.60% 14.00% 12.40% 16.40% 

(a) The financial statements of WPL Holdings, Inc. were consolidated with the operations of its subsidiaries effective January 1, 1988. For prior 
periods, non-utility subsidiary net revenues and expenses are included with "Other income (expenses), net." Such amounts are not material to 
a fair presentation of financial results and, therefore, periods prior to January 1, 1988, were not restated.  

(b) As adjusted for 2-for-1 stock split for shareowners of record on September 2, 1988.
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FINANCIAL A~ND OPERATING STATISTICS

Years Ended December 31, 
1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

Consolidated Balance Sheets (a) 
(in thousands) 

Assets 
Utility plant ...................................................... $1,961,189 $1,840,224 
Dedicated decommissioning funds.................... 51,791 49,803 
Less: accumulated depreciation......................... 808,853 763027 

1,204,127 1,127,000 
Construction work in progress ......................... 42,732 75,732 
N uclear fuel, net............................................... 19,396 18,000 
Other property and equipment, net, 

and investm ents............................................ .135,549 133,912
C urrent assets...................................................  
Deferred charges and other...............................  

T otal assets...............................................  

Capitalization and Liabilities 

Common shareowners' investment...................  
Preferred stock..................................................  
Long-term debt, net..........................................  

Total capitalization ......................................  
Current maturities of long-term debt................  
Variable-rate demand bonds.............................  
O ther current liabilities.....................................  
Other noncurrent liabilities...............................  

Total capitalization and liabilities.............  

Year-end Capitalization Ratios 
C om m on ..........................................................  
Preferred ...........................................................  
D ebt (b )............................................................  

Total capitalization ....................  

Key Financial Ratios - Utility Only 
Times interest earned 

Before tax (including AFUDC)......................  
Before tax (excluding AFUDC).....................  
After tax (including AFUDC)........................  

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and 
preferred dividend requirements 
Before tax (including AFUDC)......................  
After tax (including AFUDC)........................  

Construction expenditures financed 
internally ......................................................  

Total utility capital requirements 
financed internally........................................  

Utility Bond Rating 
Moody's Investors Service, Inc...........  
Standard & Poor's Corp...................................

154,434 
249,663 

$1,805,901 $

$ 597,798 
59,963 

448,110 
1,105,871 

2,832 
56,975 

191,265 
448,958 

$1,805,901 

48.6% 
4.9 

46.5 
100.0%

4.63x 
4.50x 
3.26x

$1,736,592 
40,377 

719,987 
1,056,982 

58,973 
16,923

$1,664,946 
36,640 

675,589 
1,025,997 

27,135 
18,682

122,800 84,018
156,817 127,357 130,010 
250438 182,863 97,657 

,761,899 $1,565,898 $1,383,499

$1,612,117 
32,800 

640,458 
1,004,459 

17,714 
19,290 

48,568 
133,609 
37,309 

$1,260,949

1989 1984

$1,554,992 
29,429 

590,012 
994,409 

14,151 
24,110

$1,032,430 

493,039 
539,391 
225,867 
10,855

31,669 11,593 
112,141 132,708 
21,647 4,688 

$1,198,127 $ 925,02

$ 582,966 $ 483,536 $ 459,659 $ 437,082 $ 423,937 $ 345,316 
59,963 62,449 62,449 59,963 59,963 66,672 

425,105 417,975 367,489 342,812 297,184 299,451 
1,068,034 963,960 889,597 839,857 781,084 711,439 

782 985 4,415 10,200 9,410 
56,975 57,075 57,875 24,000 24,000 31,100 

217,264 187,055 172,630 150,822 151,469 99,756 
418,844 356,823 258,982 236,070 232164 82,807 

$1j761899 $1,565,898 $1,383,499 $1,260,949 $1,198,127 $ 925,102

47.9% 44.2% 45.8% 
4.9 5.7 6.0 

47.2 50.1 48.2 
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

3.69x 
3.57x 
2.70x

3.41x 
3.31x 
2.55x

3.77x 
3.71x 
2.81x

48.3% 49.5% 46.3% 
6.6 7.0 8.9 

45.1 43.5 44.8 
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

3.77x 
3.73x 
2.80x

3.52x 4.48x 
3.47x 4.00x 
2.62x 2.86x

3.96x 3.15x 2.94x 3.24x 3.22x 3.00x 3.42x 
2.94x 2.43x 2.30x 2.54x 2.52x 2.35x 2.45x 

79.0% 53.0% 58.0% 81.0% 93.0% 71.0% 85.0% 

66.0% 57.0% 51.0% 67.0% 80.0% 85.0% 69.0% 

Aa Aa Aa Aa Aa Aaa Aaa 
AA AA AA AA AA AA AA+

(a) These statements have been retroactively restated to reflect Wisconsin Power and Light Company's adoption of the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission Uniform System of Accounts, with minor modifications, effective January 1990.  

(b) Includes variable rate demand bonds and short term debt outstanding on December 31.
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING STATISTICS 

Years Ended December 31, 
1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989 1984 

Consolidated Electric Statistics 
Customers served (end of period): 

Residential and farm..................................... 325,063 316,870 310,702 304,825 302,942 295,163 277,521 
Commercial and industrial ........................... 44,644 43,598 43,014 41,869 40,993 40,136 36,439 
W holesale..................................................... 81 39 31 31 31 32 37 
O ther............................................................ _1,477 12 958 _ 1 1831, 928 898 

Total........................................................ _3711265 361,743 _354,05 _347,908 _345123 9 _314,895 

Electric operating revenues (in 000s): 
Residential and farm..................................... $194,242 $184,176 $171,887 $179,751 $170,875 $168,787 $149,734 
Commercial and industrial........................... 241,869 228,880 220,174 216,840 214,590 211,026 180,584 
W holesale..................................................... 76,056 78,955 67,326 68,154 65,983 64,091 54,831 
Other........................................................... 19,580 11 6 _ 18,348 _23,07 7 19,171 39 85 

Total........................................................ $531,747 7 $477,735 $4882552 $470,819 $463,075 $425,004 

Sales - megawatthours (in 000s): 
Residential and farm..................................... 2,777 2,751 2,614 2,730 2,566 2,533 2,223 
Commercial and industrial ........................... 5,453 5,170 4,929 4,743 4,667 4,571 3,610 
W holesale..................................................... 2,207 2,106 1,995 1,980 1,885 1,823 1,465 
Other............................................................ 422 334 269 516 407 673 1,291 

Total ........................................................ 1,859 10,361 7,80Z 5 _ 9,60 85 

Generation and purchases (MWH in 000s): 
Steam ............................................................ 7,821 7,616 7,420 7,841 7,262 6,585 6,091 
N uclear......................................................... 1,625 1,565 1,615 1,508 1,599 1,534 1,562 
Hydroelectric................................................ 228 276 238 247 224 156 257 
Purchases...................................................... 1,786 1,488 1,131 968 1,009 1,933 1,222 
O ther............................................................ 24 6 6 18 8 14 5 

Total ........................................................ ___11,484 .10,951 10, O1 _ 0 52 1 _ 2 __10,222 9, 3 

System capacity at time of peak demand (MW) 
Company-owned .......................................... 2,193 2,019 1,934 1,932 1,936 1,915 1,621 
Firm purchases and sales (net) ...................... 40 83 110 70 55) 83 163 

Total ......................................... 233 ,0 2,04 200 __I81 983 1~,784 

Native system peak demand (a)........................ 2,002 1,971 1,782 1,863 1,798 1,777 1,427 
Firm demand at system peak (b)....................... 1,822 1,840 1,680 1,775 1,718 1,705 357 

Consolidated Gas Statistics 
Customers served (end of period) .................... 140,966 136,26 131669 128,027 124698 121,111 106837 

Gas operating revenues (in 000s): 
Residential.................................................... $ 71,555 $ 71,632 $ 63,699 $ 63,521 $ 59,793 $ 61,158 $ 66,763 
Commercial and industrial firm.................... 41,918 40,748 37,154 36,407 34,051 33,507 48,535 
Interruptible................................................. 8,777 10,685 14,589 12,051 11,563 8,399 30,463 
Transportation and other ............................. 17,396 14,205 J 9 5,79 5,016 4,7 9 

Total........................................................ $139,646 $137270 $119,362 $117,775 $110,423 $107,783 $146,809 

Therm deliveries (in 000s): 
Residential.................................................... 119,562 120,005 114,131 114,772 102,048 116,232 101,846 
Commercial and industrial firm.................... 87,487 87,038 82,087 83,451 74,325 84,235 86,293 
Interruptible................................................. 24,809 27,872 25,497 26,025 35,434 33,297 72,449 
Transportation and other.......................... 92,900 88,223 _71,16 66,531 _59,03 60,4516 

Total.................................................... 324758 _323,138 292,882 290,779 270,837 294,220 261,917 

Degree days 
Heating......................................................... 7,170 7,351 7,050 7,055 6,733 7,784 7,439 
Cooling......................................................... 637 630 342 858 629 524 467 

(a) Includes contract interruptible demand served at time of system peak.  
(b) Native system peak less contract interruptible demand, less direct load control served at time of peak.



SHAREOWNER 
INFORMATION 

The company had 39,624 indi- WHERE WPLH SHAREOWNERS LIVE 

vidual shareowners as of Dec. 31, (as of 12-31-94) 

1994, based on the number of 
shareowner accounts. Shareowner New York 2.1% 

account records are maintained in California 3.5% 
the corporate general office in Florida 3.9% 
Madison, Wis. . ;

in s o..o

All others 26.2% 

Wisconsin 56.0%

MIARKET INFORMATION 
Exchange Listings 

Stock Trading Newspaper 
Exchange Symbol Abbreviation 

WPL Holdings, Inc. New York Stock WPH WPL 
Common Exchange Hldg

WP&CL PRZEFERRED1 STOCK 

Wisconsin Power and Light Co. preferred 
stock dividends per share for each quarter 
during 1994 were as follows: 

Series Dividend Series Dividend

Wisconsin Power 
and Light Co.  

4.50% Preferred

American Stock 
Exchange

Wis Pr WiscPL 4.40% $1.10 
4.50% $1.125 
4.76% $1.19 
4.80% $1.20

All other Wisconsin Power and Light Co. preferred series are traded on 
the over-the-counter market.  

WPILH CoMoN STOCK QUARTERLY PRICE RANGES AND DIVIDENDS

$32 7/8 
30 3/4 
29 7/8 
28 7/8

27 3/4 
26 3/8 
27 
26 7/8

Year $32 7/8 26 3/8 

Year-end stock price: $27 3/8 

TOTAL SHAREOWNER RETURN

.48 

.48 

.48 

.48 

1.92

1993 

High Low Dividend

$36 
36 3/4 
36 1/4 
36

32 1/2 
33 1/8 
35 
31 1/2

.475 

.475 

.475 

.475

$36 3/4 31 1/2 1.90

- WPL Holdings, Inc.  

*-- S&P 500 Index 

0- S&P Utilities

As authorized by the WPL Holdings, Inc.  
and Wisconsin Power and Light Co. Board 
of Directors, record and dividend payment 
dates normally are as follows: 

WPL Holdings, Inc. Common Stock 

Record Dates Payment Dates

Jan. 31 
April 28 
July 31 
Oct. 31

Feb. 15 
May 15 
Aug. 15 
Nov. 15

Wisconsin Power and Light Co. Preferred Stock 

Record Dates Payment Dates 

Feb. 28 Mar. 15 
May 31 June 15 
Aug. 31 Sept. 15 
Nov. 30 Dec. 15

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 
Years ending

I

4.96% 
6.20% 
6.50%

1994 

Quarter High Low Dividend

$1.24 
$1.55 
$ .40625

First 
Second 
Third 
Fourth

46

$180 

$160 

$140 

$120 

$100 

$ 80 

$ 60 

$ 40 

$ 20 

$0



ANNUAL MEETING 

Shareowners of WPL Holdings, Inc. and Wisconsin Power 
and Light Co. are cordially invited to attend the corporate 
Annual Meeting at 10 a.m. local time Wednesday, May 17, 
1995. This year's Annual Meeting will be held at the Dane 
County Exposition Center, 1881 Expo Mall, Madison, 
Wisconsin. Details about the meeting will be sent to 
shareowners when proxy materials are distributed. Proxy 
materials will be mailed in late March to shareowners of 
record as of March 21.  

DUPLICATE MAILINGS 

WPLH Annual Reports are mailed to all shareowners. You 
will receive duplicate mailings from us if your shares are 
registered in different, but similar names. If you do not need 
duplicate annual reports, send us a request to eliminate the 
duplicate mailings. Please tell us the names of the accounts 
you want eliminated from our mailing list and the name of 
the account that you want used for mailings. Send your 
request to Shareowner Services.  

If you receive duplicate mailings of proxies and dividend 
checks because of slight differences in the registration of 
your account, please call Shareowner Services for instruc
tions on combining your accounts.  

DIVIDEND CHECKS NOT RECEIVED 

If you do not receive your dividend check on the appropriate 
payment date, we suggest that you wait about seven days after 
the scheduled payment date to allow for any delays in mail 
delivery. After that time, call Shareowner Services at the toll
free number listed on page 48.  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

All shareowners, including those whose stock is held by a 
bank or a brokerage firm, may call Shareowner Services toll
free at 1-800-356-5343 to receive the most recent dividend, 
earnings and financial information.  

Foai 10-K INFORMATION 

Upon request, the company will provide, without charge, 
copies of Form 10-K, as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. Direct your request to Shareowner Services.  

L ANALYST INQUIRIES 

Written or telephoned inquiries from the financial commu
nity may be directed to Susan J. Kosmo, Wisconsin Power 
and Light Co., Attn: Investor Relations, P.O. Box 192, 
Madison, WI 53701-0192. Telephone: 608-252-4851.

SERVICEs OFFERED To SHAREOWNERS 

The company is pleased to provide numerous services for 
the more than 50,000 institutions and individuals who own 
the company. Here is a summary of the key services that 
WPL Holdings offers free of charge to shareowners.  

Dividend Reinvestment - WPL Holdings has a Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan that is available to 
all of its shareowners. The plan enables shareowners to 
buy common stock directly through the company without 
paying any brokerage commissions, fees or service charges.  
The minimum monthly stock purchase is $20 and the 
current maximum is $25,000 per month. You may obtain 
a copy of the Plan Prospectus detailing the features of the 
Plan by contacting Shareowner Services.  

Automatic Stock Purchase - This option enables 
shareowners participating in the Dividend Reinvestment 
and Stock Purchase Plan who want to purchase common 
stock on a monthly basis to have money transferred directly 
from their checking accounts to their plan accounts. This 
service provides you with a way to add to your stock on a 
regular basis and build your investment over time.  

Direct Deposit - Shareowners who are not reinvesting 
their dividends through WPL Holdings' plan may choose to 
have their quarterly common and preferred stock dividend 
checks electronically deposited in their checking or savings 
accounts through this service.  

Stock Transfers - WPL Holdings is its own transfer agent 
for WPL Holdings, Inc. and Wisconsin Power and Light 
Co. stock, and handles any type of stock transfer for 
shareowners, including transfers for name changes, custo
dial accounts, joint tenancy, gifts, trusts and other changes.  

Shareowner Information - The company keeps its 
shareowners informed regularly through the Annual 
Report, the Quarterly Report and other communications.  
WPL Holdings encourages shareowners with questions or 
concerns to contact its Shareowner Services representatives.
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SHAREOWNER 
INFORMATION

STOCK TRZANSFERz AGENT _AND REGISTRZAR 

For WPL Holdings, Inc. common stock and 
Wisconsin Power and Light Co. preferred stock: 

WPL Holdings, Inc.  
Attn: Shareowner Services 
P.O. Box 2568 
Madison, WI 53701-2568 

SHARIEOWNERZ SEIZvicEs 

The company's shareowner services' representatives 
are available to assist you from 8 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.  
(Central Standard Time) each business day at one of 
the following numbers: 

Local number 608-252-3110 
Toll-free number 1-800-356-5343 

Please direct written inquiries to: 
WPL Holdings, Inc.  
Attn: Shareowner Services 
P.O. Box 2568 
Madison, WI 53701-2568
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